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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Exchange for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief:

1. the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading;

2. there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and

3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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On behalf of the board (“the Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012.

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group’s operations
comprised sales and distribution of telecommunication products,
provision of wireless services and the design and production of
traffic signboards, computer graphics, advertisements and signal
system equipment in the PRC. The Group was also engaged in
production and sales of video and films, the licensing of video
and film rights and artiste management which were discontinued
during the year ended 30 June 2012.

During the year under review, the Group completed the
acquisition of Smart Long Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Smart Long Group”). With the contribution from
Smart Long Group and Ease Ray Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Ease Ray Group”), which was acquired during
the year ended 30 June 2011, turnover for the year ended
increased from HKD45.3 million (including continuing operations
of approximately HKD27.2 million and discontinued operations
of approximately HKD18.1 million) for the year ended 30 June
2011 to HKD102.8 million (including continued operations of
approximately HKD100.2 million and discontinued operations of
approximately HKD2.6 million) for the year ended 30 June 2012,
However, due to primarily the impairment loss on goodwill arising
from the various acquisitions completed during the last three
years of approximately HKD541.5 million and the impairment
loss on the related intangible assets of approximately HKD109.3
million, the Group’s net loss attributable to owners of the
Company increased from approximately HKD36.3 million for the
year ended 30 June 2011 to HKD465.2 million for the year ended
30 June 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVISION OF WIRELESS
SERVICES

China Wimetro Group

Through China Wimetro Communications Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “China Wimetro Group”), the Group
operates a national local call package called “Shenzhou 950"
which is a value added service provided to China Mobile
subscribers. After 3 years of operations, the Group has
gained a sizable market share among subscribers of mobile
telecommunications. However, with the advanced development
of broadband wireless mobile telecommunication technology
and continuous innovation in Web application technology, China
mobile internet industry begins to grow dramatically, as 3G
technology is rapidly popularized. Moreover, instant message (IM)
products are developed for new smart phones and smart terminal
users, especially the smart phone users, grow explosively.
Besides, an increasing number of innovative companies emerge
and expand with over half of their products developed for mobile
internets, and these products form a new opening basic network
for telecommunication that provides telecommunication services
of high quality, such as voice, facsimile, image, multi-media
services. Consequently, the China mobile internet has grown from
merely a chatting tool into a comprehensive information platform
that combines functions including communication, information,
entertainment, searching, e-commerce, collaboration work and
business customer service. The most famous ones include:
comprehensive IM tools such as Tencent QQ and Microsoft MSN;
vertical IM tools such as NetEase POPO, Sina UC, Baidu Hi,
Aliwangwang, Taobao Wangwang and SNDA-US Quanquan; and
multi-platform and multi-network IM tools such as China Mobile
Feition, eSurfing Live of China Telecom and Skype.
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We have been observing such development and evaluated
its business strategies from time to time. Stakeholders either
participate in or withdraw from the market of this emerging
mobile internet industry constantly. The mobile internet business
has become another driver for internet development next to
the broadband technology and brought development space
and new and sustainable business modes to traditional internet
business development. As its development also provides infinite
possibilities in applications of the mobile network and promoted
extensive development of broadband mobile network, it has
become a strategic focus of mobile operators in their business
development. Thus, traditional operating mode of information
industry is being replaced by the emerging of the new mode.

With the improvement of network bandwidth in our country, it
is expected that the demand of the users on the business will
change into a business mode that integrates mobile network and
Internet in the next couple of years.

As a result, the original operating mode and competitive structure
of the Group seem inopportune in the new landscape. The
market share of our products may fall far behind mobile internet
in the future as is compared to the past. The original operating
mechanism and the manner of resource allocation are changing.

Given the above reasons and taking into account that if the
Company renewed its licensed period in the original manner
after the license had expired, the Company may incur loss on
the capital that was expected to invest in such renewal. We have
therefore decided to fully write off the goodwill arose from the
acquisition of China Wimetro Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Smart Long Group

On 1 July 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of Smart
Long Group. Smart Long Group is granted an exclusive right to
sell and market the high temperature superconducting (“HTS”)
filtering solutions in Guangdong and Guangxi, the PRC. During
the year under review, the development and profitability of Smart
Long Group was adversely affected due to the following factors:
1) There was a supply shortage of HTS filters. 2) Smart Long
Group’s major customers, i.e. the major telecommunication
operators in the PRC, changed their procurement policy, called
“Z H1Z{” (General Bidding Purchasing Policy), due to the
change of the relevant regulations in the PRC. This has delayed
the procurement process of these operators; the order of the
first batch of HTS filters made by them has been extended by
one year to the Company’s next financial year. 3) The fierce
competition among network equipment manufacturers made
the price of base station fall remarkably. The dominance of the
HTS system in the market share of network optimization market
was therefore adversely affected. 4) A major telecommunication
operator, our major customer, has reduced its investment in
network equipments so as to utilize such fund to implement their
marketing strategies, such as various kinds of subsidies to their
subscribers.

All the above factors have adversely affected the profitability of
Smart Long Group. Based on the updated business valuation
on Smart Long Group, the Group has recognized an impairment
loss of approximately HK$68.9 million on goodwill arose on the
acquisition of Smart Long Group and an impairment loss of
approximately HKD10.2 million on the relevant intangible assets
for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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DESIGN AND PRODUCTION OF TRAFFIC
SIGNBOARDS, COMPUTER GRAPHICS,
ADVERTISEMENTS AND SIGNAL SYSTEM
EQUIPMENT

Through Ease Ray Group, the Group operates outdoor
advertising business via the city informational pedestrian traffic
signboard system developed by Shanghai Dasan Hexian City
Environmental Art Company Limited ( /&K = F13Z 3 i 3R 5%
4T B R A 7)) (‘“Dasan Hexian”), a subsidiary that is 51.1%
indirectly owned by the Company. The system delivers public
information, commercial information and advertisements on LED
screens of traffic signboards through wireless technology for
government departments, public institutions and companies. As
recognized by municipal traffic police departments in the PRC,
the project has been granted the utility model patent certificate
and the Shanghai High & New Technology Transformation
Certificate.

During the year under review, although the outdoor advertisement
industry in China was undergoing sluggish growth and fierce
competition among companies, Ease Ray Group contributed a
turnover of approximately HKD91.1 million (2011: HKD12 million).
It is mainly attributable to Ease Ray Group’s full year operation
results consolidated into the Group for the year ended 30 June
2012, as opposed to only 2 months for the year ended 30 June
2011.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

However, because of the European debt crisis that has led to
tightened credit and liquidity problem, the Group encountered
difficulties in obtaining financing in the money market and raising
funds from the capital market. Due to the lack of funding: 1)
Dasan Hexian missed the opportunities to obtain more resources
in cities at an early stage, which has resulted in only four cities
being equipped on a permanent basis for the traffic signboard
media business. Thus, the business is not able to develop into
media of a national scale. Consequently, it cannot attract large
national advertisement customers. 2) It is not able to carry out
large-scale upgrading and transformation to traffic signboards
in cities with pilot installations. It is even unable to complete
the total installed capacities as set out in contracts executed,
seriously undermining the advantage of networking information
delivery on traffic signboards in those cities. The total number
of the traffic signboard media owned by Dasan Hexian is able
to satisfy neither the requirement of installation on roads of
the existing four cities nor customers’ requirement to deliver
information across the cities. 3) The maintenance of traffic
signboards cannot be dealt with in time, causing abnormal
information delivery in a number of traffic signboards. This has
negative impact on the image of municipal facilities and was
held accountable by the relevant authorities. It also had negative
effect on customers’ confidence towards traffic signboard media,
which makes it more difficult to achieve good results for traffic
signboard media.

As a result, the Group was not able to develop the business
of Ease Ray Group as originally planned and its profitability
has been adversely impacted. Based on the updated business
valuation of Ease Ray Group, the Group has recognized an
impairment loss of approximately HKD425.7 million on goodwill
arose on the acquisition of Ease Ray Group and an impairment
loss of approximately HKD99.1 million on the relevant intangible
assets for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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FILM EXHIBITION AND FILM RIGHTS
LICENSING AND SUB-LICENSING AND
ARTISTE MANAGEMENT

As the Company’s board of directors believed that the newly
acquired businesses, i.e. telecommunication products and
outdoor advertising media, had much potential for growth in the
PRC, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Fintage Asia Corporation in relation to the disposal the
businesses of film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-
licensing and artiste management (the “Disposal”), which have
been continuously downsizing since the last financial year.
The Disposal is expected to be completed on or before 28
September 2012.

PROSPECTS

The venturing into the telecommunication and outdoor
advertising media sectors in the PRC has been an important
move of the Group to benefit from these fast growing sectors.
Although the Group encountered challenges to survive this harsh
economic environment, the directors are still optimistic in the
overall economy of the PRC.

Going forward, the Group will continue to consider various
alternatives in obtaining additional resources to develop the
existing businesses and work on turning them around.

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVISION OF WIRELESS
SERVICES

To adapt to possible changes of our users in the future and seize
the opportunities, the Group is proactively attempting to upgrade
our products. Leveraging on our traditional advantage in the
original sector, we expand into new business sectors and strive
to become an integrator of the new industry chain, in an aim to
preemptive priorities in the future market landscape and swift our
business to the integration of mobile network and fixed internet.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

The Group is currently under preliminary negotiation with a
former director of the Company regarding a possible acquisition
(the “Possible Acquisition”) of a network service business for
higher education institutions in the PRC (the “Target Business”).
The Company is currently conducting due diligence exercise
on the Target Business. The Group will continue to work on
the Possible Acquisition. If the Possible Acquisition proceeds
and the Target Business is successfully acquired, it is expected
to create a synergy effect with the business of China Wimetro
Group and Smart Long Group so as to maximize returns to our
shareholders.

DESIGN AND PRODUCTION OF TRAFFIC
SIGNBOARDS, COMPUTER GRAPHICS,
ADVERTISEMENTS AND SIGNAL SYSTEM
EQUIPMENT

In summary, Dasan Hexian traffic signboard media is at a
key point of development. On one hand, as the business
is influenced by policies, it will be hard to obtain municipal
resources and business development on public resources will
be strictly controlled and regulated by municipal governments
across the country. Moreover, due to constant adjustments
in urban planning, the operations of traffic signboard media
in existing cities are not secured. On the other hand, we face
national media’s monopolies over customers and emerging
media further draining our customer resources. The impact of
electronic networking media is an inevitable challenge to all
traditional outdoor media. To safeguard traffic signboard media
markets we already obtained has become our top priority. We
will ensure normal operations of the existing traffic signboard
media and consider how to perform scientific upgrading and
function development as well as exploring for ways that satisfy
competitive needs in all respects. By doing this, we hope that
Dasan Hexian traffic signboard media can become indispensable
symbolic facilities in modern metropolis and a well-known
advertising media brand name in the PRC.

OVERALL

With the various stimulus measure implemented by major
economies, there have been indications that the worst economic
situation in decades may have abated, providing the Group a
positive operating environment.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group generally financed its
operations with internally generated resources. As at 30 June
2012, the Group did not have any interest-bearing borrowings
(2011 Nil).

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had current assets of
approximately HKD254.3 million (2011: HKD171.2 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HKD7.7
million (2011: HKD12.2 million), trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and payment in advances of
approximately HKD174.4 million (2011 (restated): HKD153.0
million) and loan interest receivable and current portion of loan
receivable of approximately HKD56.3 million (2011 (restated):
HKD®6.0 million); and current liabilities of approximately HKD73.5
million (2011 (restated): HKD360.6 million). The Group’s current
ratio had increased from approximately 0.5 times (restated) as at
30 June 2011 to approximately 3.5 times as at 30 June 2012.

The Group had total assets of approximately HKD694.3 million
(2011: HKD1,291.6 million) and total liabilities of approximately
HKD83.3 million (2011 (restated): HKD406.3 million), representing
a gearing ratio (expressed as total liabilities to total assets) of
approximately 12% as at 30 June 2012 (2011 (restated): 31.5%).

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 30 June 2012
amounted to approximately HKD102.8 million (2011: HKD45.3
million).

COMMITMENTS AND DEED OF CHARGE

Details of commitments and deed of charge of the Group
were set out in notes 41 and 44 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disposal of the discontinued operations disclosed in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, no significant
events have been taken place subsequent to the balance sheet
date.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Most of the Group’s cash balances and income are either
denominated in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. In view of the
stability of the exchange rates of Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, no hedging or other alternatives have been implemented.
As at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, the Group did not have
any outstanding hedging instruments.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
PLACING

The Company successfully completed a placing of 270,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.3 per share
on 30 November 2011, raising net proceeds (after deduction
of the relation expenses) of approximately HK$79.78 million.
The Company has utilized the net proceeds in the manner
consistent with that disclosed in its announcement dated 22
November 2011. As at 30 June 2012, HK$27 million has been
used for the redemption (at 108% of the principal amount) of
convertible bonds issued by the Company on 3 June 2011 and
the remaining balance of the net proceeds has been used as the
general working capital of the Group.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had 43 staff (2011: 64). Total
employee remuneration, including that of the Directors, for the
year under review amounted to approximately HKD8.3 million
(2011: HKD42.0 million), no share-based payments were incurred
during the year (2011: HKD38.0 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Employee remuneration, excluding
Directors’ emoluments, is reviewed annually. In addition to the
basic salaries, employees are also entitled to benefits including
bonus and mandatory provident fund. On 22 July 2002, the
Company had adopted a share option scheme under which
full time employees, including Directors, of the Company and
its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company’s ordinary shares. The share option scheme expired on
21 July 2012. The Company is considering the adoption of a new
share option scheme and announcement and/or circular in this
relation will be published as and when appropriate.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my appreciation to the Group’s shareholders and
customers for their utmost support, and to the management and
staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group during the
year.

LI Hongrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Hongrong, aged 51, was appointed as the chairman
and executive Director on 30 October 2008. He graduated
from tertiary institution in China and has extensive corporate
management experience in various commercial sectors and
capital market. He has worked closely with governmental,
financial and telecommunication industries.

Mr. Theo EDE, aged 39, was appointed as executive Director on
13 May 2010. He graduated from the department of philosophy
of Freiburg University in Germany and obtained a Master degree
of Arts. He has served with various international enterprises such
as General Electric Company in Europe and Nanhua Futures
Company, Limited in PRC as a senior management member.
He is familiar with international capital market and deeply
comprehensive of the development of macroeconomy, holding
professional qualification of futures industry in PRC.

Mr. HU Yangjun, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 13 May 2010 and re-designated as
an executive Director on 15 December 2010. He graduated
from Anhui Normal University. He has worked in Zhejiang Orient
Group, #T/LEgER F1E AR H R A Al (Zhejiang Ju Neng Dongfang
Holdings Company Limited) and Insigma Group Co., Ltd. He has
several years of corporate management experience in various
industries such as IT and international trade. Mr. Hu is a member
of All-China Youth Federation.
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Mr. ZHANG Xinyu, aged 51, was appointed as executive
Director and chief executive officer on 15 June 2012. Mr. Zhang
holds a Master of Business Administration degree and is familiar
with the securities market regulations in Hong Kong. He was
a licensed responsible officer under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and an advisor of the Management Consulting
Committee of China Enterprise Confederation. He has over 20
years working experience in banking and investment banking
industries and accumulated extensive network resources and
experience in capital management. He has been engaged
in research and practice in listing, merger and acquisition,
reorganisation, spin-off and asset securitisation. In 1990, he was
appointed by the PRC government to hold senior position in
Bank of China (Hong Kong) in Hong Kong and to provide financial
support to Chinese entities under the State Council based in
Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 March 2005. Mr. Lam
is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators respectively. He has over 23
years of experience in professional auditing, accounting and
financial management. Mr. Lam is currently the sole proprietor of
Messrs. Mark K. Lam & Co., certified public accountants, which
is specialized in providing professional auditing and corporate
advisory services to various private and public entities. He is
also the independent non-executive director of CCT Resources
Holdings Ltd., which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
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Professor SONG Junde, aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 July 2010. He is
a professor and doctoral supervisor of Computer College of
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications. He is
currently a director of PCN&CAD centre, Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications, which is a key ministerial-level
laboratory of Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
(MIIT), chairman of CMIS of China Communications Standards
Association (CCSA), honorary doctor of Moscow Institute of
Electronic Engineering, subject appraisal group member of
Academic Degrees Committee of the State Council, postdoctoral
evaluation expert of Ministry of Personnel, Chinese chairman of
IFIP TC7 of International Federation for Information Processing,
communication technology committee member of Ministry of
Information Industry and professional consultant of satellite
and radio, specialist of Expert Advisory Committee of CCSA,
expert of Technical Committee of CCSA, deputy director of
Network and Data Communications Professional Committee of
China Computer Federation, director of PCN&CAD centre and
CTI research centre which are key ministerial-level laboratories
of Ministry of Information Industry. He previously held various
positions in Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications
including chairman of Academic Degrees Committee and dean of
Graduate School.

Professor CHEN Lujun, aged 47, is a Doctor of Engineering,
Professor of Department of Environmental Science and
Engineering, Tsinghua University and a doctorial tutor. He
worked as a Deputy Director of Yangtze Delta Region Institute
of Tsinghua University, Zhejiang. He is currently the Director of
Centre for Technology and Policy research of Pollutants Control
and Environmental Quality Improvement, Tsinghua University, the
Director of Research Institute for Environmental, Yangtze Delta
Region Institute of Tsinghua University, Zhejiang, a member of the
10th Committee of the All-China Youth Federation, Vice President
of China Youth Association for Economic Development and one
of Provincial Middle-aged and Young Talents with Outstanding
Contributions of Zhejiang Province. He organized and completed
almost 100 environmental projects, and undertook and
participated to complete a number of national and provincial
research projects. He also won various national and provincial
awards. He is also the winner of the 1st and 3rd Scientific and
Technological Award for Young Scholar of Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences
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The Directors present herewith their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Group at 30 June 2012 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 182. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
183 to 184. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 42 to
43.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2012, the Company has distributable reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately HKD337,132,000 (2011 (restated):
HKD554,196,000). Under the Companies Law (Revised) by
the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in form of fully paid bonus
shares.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 36 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Movements in the Company’s convertible notes during the year
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 June 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

PURCHASES

- the largest supplier 100% (2011: 30%)
- five largest suppliers combined 100% (2011: 49%)

SALES

- the largest customer 73% (2011: 35%)
- five largest customers combined 96% (2011: 86%)

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2012, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, including interests or short positions which they were
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to securities transactions by directors, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

(@) Ordinary share of HKDO0.10 each of the
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(a) AAFAEREEI0GETZEE

Company B
Approximate
No. of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Position shares held shareholding
"B
BExps 514 BR BROBE BOEREIL
Mr. LI Hongrong Interest of controlled corporation  Long 13,038,000 Shares 0.56%
(Note)
FHRREE REH AR s ) 13,038,000% % 17
(F3E)

Note: These Shares are held by Tread Up Investments Limited
(“Tread Up”). The entire issued share capital of Tread Up
was beneficially owned by Mr. LI Hongrong. Thus, he was
deemed to be interested in the 13,038,000 Shares held by
Tread Up pursuant to the SFO.
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(b) Share options
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(b) FERHE

Number of Approximate

Number of underlying Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity options held shares shareholding

EEpnE 237 FEEREHE HERGBE BOSREI

Mr. HU Yangjun Beneficial owner 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.64%
B EEsE EmMAA

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any interests
or short positions in the securities of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities” and “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other corporate granted to any Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. LI Hongrong

Mr. Theo EDE

Mr. HU Yangjun

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu (appointed on 15 June 2012)
Mr. ZHOU Zhibin (retired on 16 December 2011)
Mr. OU Bai (resigned on 23 March 2012)

Mr. ZHANG Fan (resigned on 23 March 2012)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS:

Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark
Professor SONG Junde
Professor CHEN Lujun

The Directors are subject to retirement and re-election by rotation
in the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 16 to 18 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 30 June
2012, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
chief executives.
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Long positions FA
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding
£ EEME FEEROEE BAKERED
LIE Haiquan Beneficial owner 156,178,000 Shares 6.71%
5| g 1 BEREAA 156,178,0008% A% 15
Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 1) 6,796,000 Shares 0.29%
REHRE 2w (M) 6,796,000/% f% 17
Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 2) 49,488,000 Shares 2.13%
REHlRE 2w (MEE2) 49,488,000% B 15
Total 212,462,000 Shares 9.13%
#Et 212,462,0000% §& 15
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Notes:

1. These Shares are held by Ocean Peal Group Limited (“Ocean
Peal”) that was wholly-owned by Mr. LIE Haiquan. Thus, he was
deemed to be interested in the 6,796,000 Shares held by Ocean
Peal pursuant to the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Winner Mind Investment Limited (“Winner
Mind”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. LIE Haiquan. Thus, he was deemed
to be interested in the 49,488,000 Shares held by Winner Mind
pursuant to the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in
a business which compete or may compete with the business of
the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on
pages 27 to 33 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June
2012.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2012 have been audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
LI Hongrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
principles adopted by the Company emphasis a quality board,
transparency and accountability to shareholders. In the opinion
of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code for the
year ended 30 June 2012, with the exception of the deviation in
respect of the appointment term of non-executive Directors as
mentioned below.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. Accordingly the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to dealt with the
requirement in respect of the appointment terms of non-executive
Directors as required under the code provision.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware
of any noncompliance with the required standard of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
during the year ended 30 June 2012.

REIFTEES

EHERAF e ZF—

G EERRE
WO EEAEETA

ARRZEEERTHRCEBEBAAIZERE
ZFEmHRA(TRIER EMRA D ME+AZ
13 E0R B AR T RIPT8LR Al & 57 GRS (157
A1) ARARIFAFEACRABESERZES
ERHEBERRZERELRFAEE - EFER
R BRI B BFRITEE R EFHZ
REEBRIN BE—Z——F X XA=THILF
B ARRADETTRIZHRE

RIETAMEXFALME SERITE FRIRE
EERZRE-FRTETLEFEREFE
%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ Az ERRHAARmER
Eo Bl AARR BRI R - EIE
ﬁ%%iﬁTﬁ%#ﬁﬁé%Zé&i%Zﬁ

Eo

1E S

Izn)&

BHERPZITHR

ol

—\\
1
|

4t

ARREHEMN—EBRESETELRRSZ
TASFA ﬁﬁlTﬁW@%thﬁw
%5.48i5.671|mﬁﬁiﬁ;12x SUAER| B E
—:ﬁﬁﬂz+a¢¢§'$ﬁﬂﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ
ERELRFRER  MARBWE T AEEMNE
AR SEAREREESETEERH TR
AlZTERERT-

—FEg

27



Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, which shall give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the basis of
preparation of financial statements are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board is also responsible
for formulating the Group’s long term strategy, determining and
approving the Group’s significant transactions and supervising
the management to ensure thorough implementation of the
Group’s policies and effective performance of their duties.
Other decisions are to be delegated to management. As at 30
June 2012, the Board comprised seven Directors, including
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The executive Directors are Mr. LI Hongrong
(Chairman), Mr. Theo EDE, Mr. HU Yangjun and Mr. ZHANG
Xinyu (Chief Executive Officer). The independent non-executive
Directors are Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark, Professor SONG Junde
and Professor CHEN Lujun. Biographies of the Directors are set
out in pages 16 to 18.

There is no non-compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules and there is no relationship among members of the
Board and the independent non-executive Directors.

o
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EARSERE ERERENRRESZESH
TARSEECBERBRBETHES EMBE
AEETEEERE - R_Z——F A=+
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) E=2gm®

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2012, 17 Board meetings MREZE-_Z——F~A=-t+HLEFERNEHRT

were held. Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows: 1TREFELH EFHREFBEROT:

Directors’

Name of the Directors Attendance

EENE EEHESR

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. LI Hongrong =L e 17/17

Mr. Theo EDE Theo EDEJt 4 17/17

Mr. HU Yangjun ARG E ST A 13/17

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu RETFRAE 0/0
(appointed on 15 June 2012) (RZZE——F X XATHBEZMT)

Mr. ZHOU Zhibin JE AR o A 5/8
(retired on 16 December 2011) (R=ZZ——F+A+NAREME)

Mr. OU Bai B AR 5 A 8/11
(resigned on 23 March 2012) (R=ZBE—=—F=ZA=+=BFMT)

Mr. ZHANG Fan SRR S A& 6/11
(resigned on 23 March 2012) (R-—ZT——HF=ZA -+=HET)

Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark IR e & 13/17

Professor SONG Junde REEHIER 13/17

Professor CHEN Lujun PR = B 12/17

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should 1815 51 Bl & X EA 4116 FERTTE ERIRE
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of TEEHET AR ZIFRTESTEBETE
appointment of the non-executive Directors of the Company, (E&FH - A HEWERBEARAQE 2 Zi2 40
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance — BIE{ERE - E It AR TR ABCHE T B
with articles of association of the Company. Accordingly the i RIE~TBEXX BREZEITE S 2 ZEFH
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to  Z 7 ©

dealt with the requirement in respect of the appointment terms of

non-executive Directors as required under the code provision.

HEHEEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
The Board held a board meeting for each quarter to discuss and
approve the Group’s results. The then board members attended
the meetings.

In addition, the then Directors attended the board meetings to
approve the appointment and resignation of Directors during the
year.

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer are separate and are not performed by the
same individual. The chairman is responsible for overseeing
the function of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Group. The chief executive officer, supported by
the senior management, is responsible for managing the Group’s
responsibilities, the business, implementing major strategies,
making day-to-day decisions and coordinating overall business
operations.

Mr. LI Hongrong and Mr. ZHANG Xinyu were appointed as the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company respectively
and their roles are segregated.

EEHD (4)
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates
for members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any
additional director is considered necessary. The Board will
review the qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining
the suitability to the Group on the basis of his qualifications,
experience and background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual
reports, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) to discuss
and review with the auditor of the Company on the scope
and findings of the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control procedures of the
Group.

The audit committee consists of all the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAM Kin
Kau, Mark, Professor SONG Junde and Professor CHEN
Lujun. The chairman of the audit committee is Mr. LAM Kin
Kau, Mark, who possesses extensive experience in finance
and accounting.

REIFTEES

EHERAF e ZF—

&% ERRE

ERZRA
ARTLRRLREEER
EERIIERENVEABAE  NAHE
FEERAEEEERAEEERTREAE
o ESRBRABNEZAE ARRHER
EERYHARETEREAMAR

EX%89

AP EZSRETRE EETRMEESE
Begxik BEZEeRACATIREHRE
LBE#E BREZB e B AENREEEZE
ERBEBEANZEEEHRE

1. BERZE®

RARBK I BEZEZES  HEEBESR
B 7 & 8 Z MR _E 48 B 555.28% £55.33
Fo-BmRLZER 2 X ERB NFHAS
EzFE FEHEEERS: O)EAQR
ZERE S R R s BE RER
ROEBEBREE ZMBRRIEF KA
Eﬁhkf

ENZESHAARAMEBIIERNIT
EEMEREE REARHEERRSE
BEEAR -BERZE G 2T FERMER
FE EBEELENMBEREFER-

—FEg

31



Corporate Governance Report

EEXERR

BOARD COMMITTEES (Gontinued)

1.

EELEE @)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) 1. BEZZEE @)
The audit committee held four meetings during the year REEFEAN FZZEeRETUAE
under review and the then committee members attended wOmMERCZEENEHELFEEE -
the meetings.
The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and EZZEgLBHASEEHEE T —
audited annual results during the year ended 30 June 2011 FRAZTHIEFEZARAKEEZZER
have been reviewed by the audit committee, which is of ':P %ﬁ%ﬁi KERZFEXE-BEZEZE
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with ERRBEEECRBERGH LR
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and MEMBRE WEI/EHFTMDIEEE-
that adequate disclosure have been made.
Details of the members’ attendance of the audit committee EZZEEERNKEHEFBOT:
meetings are as follows:

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
BEEnE ESHER
Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark MEIRE A 5/5
Professor SONG Junde REEHR 5/5
Professor CHEN Lujun PR = B R 5/5
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 2. FMEEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are
(a) to make remunerations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management; and (b) to establish a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration.

The remuneration committee consists of all of the
Company’s independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark, Professor SONG Junde and
Professor CHEN Lujun.

During the year, the committee met to discuss the
remuneration related matters. During the meeting, the
performance of executive Directors was assessed, and
the remuneration of whom and the policy of which was
discussed and approved.

ARABERBAIZR EHARZBRER

ERIHFMWEZED jﬁE?ﬂmhaﬁﬂﬁ
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Gontinued)

2.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the members’ attendance of the remuneration
committee meetings are as follows:

&% ERRE

SEELEDHm)

FMZEeemmNBEEHBOT

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
BN EEHEE
Mr. LAM Kin Kau, Mark MEIREHE 2/2
Professor SONG Junde RNEBHIE 2/2
Professor CHEN Lujun PR = B 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee consists of all the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors. It is responsible for
reviewing and making recommendation to the Board on
matters relating to the Board structure and appointment
and re-appointment of Directors. The committee members
elect one of them to take the chair at the commencement
of each meeting. The Committee has specific written terms
of reference which are of no less exacting terms than those
stipulated in code provision.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 34 to 37. During the vyear,
auditor’s remuneration for audit services was approximately
HKD730,000 and non-audit services, comprising review
services for the disposal of the discontinued operations and
certification service for the Company’s share consolidation,
was approximately HKD185,000. Save as disclosed
above, there was no other significant non-audit services
assignment undertaken by the external auditor during the
year.
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r;

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NEO TELEMEDIA LIMITED
PEFEEEEERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to
182, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2012, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Except as described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

h&E (FE) GrtiEHAMAERAE
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

(1) LIMITATION OF SCOPE ON THE
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Included in the Group’s gross prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of approximately HKD94,273,000
as at 30 June 2012 were gross other receivable of
approximately HKD33,972,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB27,628,000) due from an independent third party
arising from the failure to meet the profit guarantee for
Smart Long Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2011 as disclosed in Note 28(b) and Note
39(a) to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2012. The directors of the Company
are of the view that the Group is able to recover the
outstanding balance, and therefore no impairment had
been provided on such balance. However, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence we consider
necessary in order to assess whether such receivable
could be recovered in full or to determine the amount of
impairment, if any. There were no practical alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as
to any impairment loss had been occurred against these
receivable as at 30 June 2012.
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(2

Any adjustment to the amount of the above receivable
found to be necessary would affect the Group’s net assets
as at 30 June 2012 and the Group’s loss for the year then
ended and related note disclosures to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIMITATION OF SCOPE ON THE
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF LOAN
AND LOAN INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Included in the Group’s loan and loan interest receivables
of HKD56,349,000 as at 30 June 2012 was a loan
to an independent third party with a principal amount
of approximately HKD10,821,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,800,000) and interest receivable of approximately
HKD37,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB30,000) as
details disclosed in Note 26(c) to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. The directors
of the Company are of the view that the Group is able
to recover the outstanding balances, and therefore no
impairment had been provided on such balance. However,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence we consider necessary in order to assess whether
such loan and loan interest receivables could be recovered
in full or to determine the amount of impairment, if any.
There were no practical alternative audit procedures that
we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to any impairment
loss had been occurred against these loan and loan interest
receivables as at 30 June 2012.

Any adjustment to the amount of the above loan and loan
interest receivables found to be necessary would affect the
Group’s net assets as at 30 June 2012 and the Group’s
loss for the year then ended and related note disclosures to
the consolidated financial statements.

(2
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Independent Auditor’s Report

QUALIFIED OPINION ARISING FROM
LIMITATION OF AUDIT SCOPE

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 June 2012 and of its loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA COMPANY LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256

Suites 313-317, 3/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

27 September 2012

%8 3L 1% BB 3R &

TR SRR B M E L 2 RE
ARBERA RREEAEE-BFLFE
AT REEAUBEEIRRES
MHRELARERATHRR BEER=
T —FRA=HAZHBRAREBERA
EEEZFERRSRE LRBREBATE
BI2 RBREE AR

FE(FR)SHHEEMERARA
BEBEBETE AN

BREZE

HEFERR - P05256
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SAETHEHWEER

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z —Z—

ZFNA=THIEFE

2012 2011
—E-——& —T——f
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt FTET FHT
(Restated)
(g=E75))
Continuing operations FERE K
Turnover | 8 100,180 27,163
Cost of sales $HE R (9,396) (5,359)
Gross profit EAH 90,784 21,804
Other income and gains E A Rz 9 3,180 12,025
Gain on contingent consideration FARE = 28 33,972 -
Changes in fair value of JES AT IR AR
convertible notes payable NEEEE 35 702 (329)
Gain on settlement of contingent EEENSEARE 2 W=
consideration payable 34 183,415 -
Share-based payments expenses LA BER 2 T RE A 37 - (38,331)
Selling and marketing costs SHE RIS HE R A (1,741) (2,846)
Administrative and other expenses TERREMER (112,489) (19,355)
Impairment loss recognised in B EERRZRERBE
respect of intangible assets 25 (109,316) -
Impairment loss recognised in REBEBERZIBEEE
respect of goodwill 22 (541,458) -
Loss on early redemption of IR O A AT R
convertible notes payable ERCEE 35 (1,596) -
Finance costs B & A AR 11 (1,305) (222)
Loss before tax BRELRIEE 13 (455,852) (27,254)
Income tax credit (expense) Frigfite (M) 12 35,630 (3,809)
Loss for the year from BEGEER 2 FNER
continuing operations (420,222) (31,063)
Discontinued operations HRILREER
Loss for the year from discontinued 4% |FAC & 275 2 F N EE
operations, net of income tax (HBRFIBHL) 15 (10,897) (1,956)
Loss for the year FANEIE (431,119) (33,019
Other comprehensive income HtZmW A
Exchange differences on translation REBINEB ISR
of financial statements of foreign FEAZIERER
operations 2,169 84
Total comprehensive expense FNEEAZ BT
for the year (428,950) (82,935)

e
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=F——FNA=+HIFFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt FTET T
(Restated)
(seE7)
(Loss) profit for the year DTATEMLMER (BHE)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company KABER A
Loss for the year from SEIKE K 2
continuing operations FNEE (454,256) (34,298)
Loss for the year from BIbEEER 2
discontinued operations FNEE (10,897) (1,956)
Loss for the year attributable to ZAN/NEIEZZS N
owners of the Company FEEFEAEE (465,153) (36,254)
Non-controlling interests IR =
Profit for the year from BEREER
continuing operations F A A 34,034 3,235
Loss for the year from BRI EEE 2
discontinued operations FAEE - -
Profit for the year attributable to FEVEAR R AL
non-controlling interests F A g A 34,034 3,235
Loss for the year FHEBE (431,119) (33,019)
Total comprehensive (expense) DTALTEMAZ2®E (BAX)
income attributable to: LONE-
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZESDN (464,197) (36,170)
Non-controlling interests e 35,247 3,235
(428,950) (32,935)
HK cents HK cents
AL il
Loss per share BRER 14
From continuing and RERFE MR T
discontinued operations
Basic HAR (21.49) (2.26)
Diluted e (21.49) (2.26)
From continuing operations REFBEEE
Basic LoYiN (20.98) (2.14)
Diluted 5] (20.98) (2.14)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEMBRRE

At 30 June 2012 RZ-F—ZFNA=1+H

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%F
~A=+H ~NA=+H
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
B3 FHET T
(Restated)
(gE75))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E RN ] 20 26,244 41,229
Film rights, film in progress and B TREA R
film royalty deposits BRRELS 21 - 6,042
Goodwill [ 22 351,528 758,380
Deposit paid for acquisition of Y E—EREARZ
a subsidiary BfiEe 24 - 120,000
Intangible assets mEE 25 62,282 182,822
Loan and loan interest receivables FEWE R R E K F & 26 - 11,915
440,054 1,120,388
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables B 5 RWIR K 27 80,098 54,724
Prepayments, deposits and ENRIE Eek
other receivables H fth fE U R IE 28 94,273 98,312
Loan and loan interest receivables FEWE B SRF S 26 56,349 5,958
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 30 7,671 12,202
238,391 171,196
Assets classified as held for sale PERFIELHECEE 31 15,874 -
254,265 171,196
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBAE
Trade payables E I EMNER 32 7,854 37,497
Other payables and accruals B 58 R E RN RUE 33 21,702 48,716
Contingent consideration payable JETSKARE 34 - 220,500
Deposits received Bz e 7,378 21,124
Receipt in advances TEU BR K 21,180 3,239
Convertible notes payable FEAT AT IR IR AR 35 - 24,801
Tax liabilities MIBAE 7,506 4,675
65,620 360,552
Liabilities associated with assets HYBARELEZ
classified as held for sale BEEHzEE 31 7,874 -
73,494 360,552
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEE (BE)FE
(LIABILITIES) 180,771 (189,356)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 620,825 931,032
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B # Ak &

At 30 June 2012 R=ZFE—Z—#F~A=+H

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
~NB=+H ~NA=+H
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
e FET FET
(Restated)
(&&:7))
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 38 9,772 45,705
NET ASSETS EEFHE 611,053 885,327
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E
Share capital A& A< 36 232,692 193,282
Reserves e 323,764 669,592
Equity attributable to owners of RNTHER AEGER
the Company 556,456 862,874
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR M 54,597 22 453
TOTAL EQUITY ey k] 611,053 885,327

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 182 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 September 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Hongrong
TR
DIRECTOR
EF

FIBEEFIRANGEAMNBTHREN_-"F—=
FAA-tLREE=SHAERRENE I

mMTIESEHERES:

ZHANG Xinyu
REF
DIRECTOR
o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAREGEREX

For the year ended 30 June 2012

R E - FNA=THIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARBNES
Share Capital Non-
Share Share options and other  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
EER
R& BRHEE BRERE Htb R BERE it EE & FRRER at
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FhEL TAL T Fign FhEL TAT TET FiEL FAL
(Restated)
(@E50)
(Note a)
(Miza)
At 1July 2010 RZZ-ZFtA-H 154,282 457,855 - 17,590 (57) (178,457) 451213 - 451213
(Loss) profit for the year ER(EE)ER - - - B - (36,254) (36,254) 3235 (33,019)
Exchange differences on translation of 2 BN £ 56 Bk
financial statements of MEEZERER
foreign operations - - - - 84 - 84 - 84
Other comprehensive income FREMZERA
for the year - - - - 84 - 84 - 84
Total comprehensive income EREANA (BX)EE
(expenses) for the year - - - - 84 (36,254) (36,170) 3,235 (32,935)
Acquisition of subsidlaries (Note 39(0) M EEH B 2 2] (Fi#39(0)) 39,000 370,500 - - - - 409,500 19,218 428,718
Recognition of equity-settled BRRALENRR A
share based payments (Note 37) ER 2 30 (H537) - - 38,331 - - - 38,331 - 38,331
At 30 June 2011 RZF-—%7A=+A 193,282 828,355 38,331 17,590 27 (214,711) 862,874 22,453 885,327
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAAEEAES
Share Capital Non-
Share Share options  and other  Translation Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
9
B& ROEE BRERE bt BEGE EERE 5] &t FERES @it
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FERT FERT FET FET FAT FAT FEL FEL FAL FEL
(Note a)
(Hizta)
At 1 July 2011 RZZ-—F+A-8 193,282 828,355 38,331 17,590 27 - (214,711) 862,874 22,453 885,327
(Loss) profi for the year FR (BE)EHN - - - - - - (465,153) (465,153) 34,034 (431,119)
Exchange differences on tranglation of B E N ERHBRE
financial statements of MEfZERZER
foreign operations - - - - 956 - - 956 1,213 2,169
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 Rt 2 EMA - - - - 956 - - 956 1,213 2,169
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ FAZEMA (F%) E5E
for the year - - - - 956 - (465,153) (464,197) 35,247 (428,950)
Transfer (Note b) 28 (o) - - - - - 7375 (4,272) 3,103 (3,109) -
Issue shares in relation to the acquisiton  StMEEEHBRARETRA
of Smart Long Limited (Note 39(al) (5¥39()) 6,875 30,936 - - - - - 37,811 - 37,811
Issue shares in relation to the acquistion  StHEEERARAAETRA
of Ease Ray Limited (Note 39(0)) (FH5£39(0)) 553 31,550 - - - - - 37,085 - 37,085
Cancelation of share options AR (MH3137(0))
(Note 37(b)) - - (5,144 - - - 5,144 - - -
Placing of shares (Note 36(c) RERH (HE3060) 27,000 52,780 - - - - - 79,780 - 79,780
At 30 June 2012 R=B-=FXA=1H 232,692 943,621 33,187 17,590 983 7,375 (678,992 556,456 54,597 611,053
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREmEEE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

It represents the following:

(i) the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the
share capital of B&S Group Limited and its subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange of HKD157,000; and

(i) the surplus of HKD17,433,000 arising from allotment
and issue of 15,000 shares of USD1 each of B&S Group
Limited, credited as fully paid to set off against the loans of
HKD17,550,000 owing to the executive directors pursuant
to the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 29 July 2002.

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (‘PRC”), subsidiaries of Neo Telemedia Limited
(the “Company”) established in the PRC are required to transfer
10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting standards and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of
their respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to owners of these
subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into capital in
proportion to existing equity owners’ equity percentage, provided
that the balance after such issuance is not less than 25% of their
registered capital.

BREEIEATEE:

0] AR AT EEB&S Group Limited &2 H
B A R AR AN AR (B B R A R B THE
BIRE157,00078 TR ERRATEE
MEZZRE R

(i)  FACEE K3 1715,0000% &A% EE13E T
HIB&S Group Limitedi&(n M EL 2 &
#:17,433,0008 7C (IRIEARAEHE A
—EE-F AT AABERERS
FrEimEEER EBRMARARHR
AR SE /R 1T E F 2 B 5k17,550,0007%
JL) °

REHEARKINE ([ ])BEEG R
BPEMEEREERAR ([AARDR
FREIR A 2 M8 A BIZABBE AN 2 10% (1%
RAEMDBEE R RREMETE) 2ATER
HREE EEZRBERERESE 22
BARZ250% - BREEZRFEVARMZS B
RAZFEAAD KR BRIEL < & TE BAERE
AREREREFECER (MF) LR
BERAEEAZERAD LBHRARA.
HERBTRZERISEREEMELRZ
25% °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

2012 2011
Z2——F —T——
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&=51)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES & '§ %iﬁi B
Loss before tax BRELAIE R
— from continuing operations —FBRAS T (455,852) (27,254)
— from discontinued operations — IR (10,937) (1,919)
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Finance costs A& B AN 1,305 202
Interest income FBWA - (1,518) (12)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WE RBETE 9,680 5,691
Amortisation of intangible assets BICAEME 51,141 3,098
Gain on contingent consideration NRE 2 Yz (33,972) -
Gain on settlement of contingent HEEENRAREZ
consideration payable W as (183,415) -
Waived of debt of other payable E?ﬁ % Hih KRB -
i _
Loss on strike off of branch [Nl 5 22 -
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of ME Z W ARRER 2
trade receivables _BERBE - (806)
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of FLE (W RIARE 2
other receivables B (B [ 18 . - (167)
Written off of property, plant and equipment WEE T BB Rk 70 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME BEM&RfZ
plant and equipment (Wrzs) B8 (443) 11
Loss on early redemption of 12 5 HE ol pE AT R R
convertible notes payable FEoEE 1,596 -
Changes in fair value of JER IR EE 2
convertible notes payable _ RFEED ) (702) 329
Impairment loss recognised in respect of assets HFELHEEERR
held for sale _pEEBEE 7,142 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MOE - BE KRR
property, plant and equipment | MR ZMEEE 6,861 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REERRZBEEE
inventories N L 800 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of NEERRZBEEE
goodwill N N 541,458 -
Impairment losses recognised in respect of HEZRE ERTAR
film rights, film in progress and film royalty BEMIERSHER L
deposits _REEE 3,949 2,549
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MBI EERRZ
intangible assets BB EE ) 109,316 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B 2 FE U BR R
trade receivables _RERE \ 41 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEE A R RKIB R 2
other receivables HEEE 1,607 622
Amortisation of film rights, film in progress and B R R R
film royalty deposits X RER e B 278 2,056
Share-based payments expenses ARR (0 B &R 2 S35 E A - 38,331
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHH
in working capital REBSRE \ 48,369 22,751
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B 5 AR (32 00) 3 (25,418) 19,299
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, TR RRIA B E K A
deposits and other receivables JE W R B R A (38 0) 23,697 (38,142)
Decrease in payment in advances BTERROR D = 1,369
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B I EITIRR O ) 18 (29,571) 9,344
Decrease in other payables and accruals E At JE 15 R IE K
JE St RRIB R A (35,919) (42,345)
(Decrease) increase in deposits received 2z e CRA) & (8,363) 17,793
Increase in receipt in advances e U BR FR3E N 17,941 2,699
Cash used in operations REXBMARS (9,264 (7,232)
Income tax paid PR 5,382 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEKMBEESFE (14,646) (7,232)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HI FZE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHT
(Restated)
(re&E5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and I EEHT B A A
cash equivalent acquired) (SN ATIKEIR S &
ReHEY) 13 319
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary BB —HE AR
BffZe - (120,000)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEME&HE (1,755) (14,863)
Purchase of film rights, film in progress and BEEME EREH
film royalty deposits REHRIEES (12) (108)
Purchase of intangible assets BERLAE (5,434) -
Loan to independent third parties MBI E=FIEHMER (48,816) (17,873)
Repayment of loan receivables EEERER 11,915 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEREHEZ
plant and equipment FriS I8 905 115
Interest received B RS 154 12
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFBFARSFEE (43,030) (152,393)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
Net proceeds from placement of shares il & B 10 BT 1S BB F 3R 79,780 -
Redemption of convertible notes payable fE ol FE R IR AR 2R 95 (27,000) -
Repayments of obligations under finance leases EEmERERE - (21)
Net proceeds from issue of BTN AR FIRFTE
convertible notes payable FIBFEE - 24,250
Interest paid 2AFE - 1)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBHMES2RSFHE 52,780 24,228
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRBESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B FEE (4,895) (135,397)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUBRERBESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,202 148,168
Effect on foreign exchanges rate changes EREHTE 884 (569)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREASRBASEEY:
AT END OF THE YEAR, BIiRTT&HE R RIR €
represented by bank balances and cash 8,191 12,202
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND FRESREBESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR EERD T
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERE 7,671 12,202
Bank balances and cash classified PEARELEEEL
as assets held for sale RITEHR KA S 520 -
8,191 12,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
whose functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
are HKD. The reason for selecting HKD as its presentation
currency is that the Company is a public company listed on
the GEM, where most of the investors are located in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 43
to the consolidated financial statements. The Group was
also engaged in production and sales of videos and fims,
the licensing of video and copyrights/films rights and artiste
management which were discontinued during the year
ended 30 June 2012 (Note 15).

—H AR

FEFEEREARAR ([ARF])TS
ERSREEMRLcERRBERRF]
HENREBEBERXSMBRAA ([5
A1) AIER ([RIZR]) Ee

ARBRGEM I ERE e E B E KR
HERAFRPHO[RAER] — &K

E‘go

RAEMBHREABIT (BT 25 &
RAEPEARKME ([ B ]) K&K
BRAINMEEER/ARE ([AR%])
S ARBIREMBARNNEER R
BT EEBTIERREZNERNRR
EARBNHEAER ETHOARAE
MEIRRZBIREERFRESL -

ARBR—HREERRR EfEAR
M EBRBHNGRE WK T4
AEBNTUFRENEET A NER
KRR kR EEMEREAERE
X MaEERHORBE_FT—=

NAZTHLEFERIEEE (KFE15) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) issued in 2010

HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from
(Amendment) Comparative HKFRS 7

Disclosure for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
(Amendments) Financial Assets

HKAS 24 (as revised Related Party Disclosures
in 2009)

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC*) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement

HK(FRIC*) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

*

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o & BT R R B R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (AS PART OF
IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs ISSUED
IN 2010)

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity may
choose to disclose an analysis of other comprehensive
income by item in the statement of changes in equity or in
the notes to the financial statements. In the current year,
for each component of equity, the Group has chosen to
present such an analysis in the statement of changes
in equity. The revised standard has no impact on the
consolidated financial statement of the Group.

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2009 to 2011 cycle!
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 9 Transition Disclosures?
Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 10, Joint Arrangements and
HKFRS 11 and Disclosure of Interests in Other
HKFRS 12 Entities: Transitional Guidance'
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

FERFR] NS R BB TS
WL ([ BB ISmE%E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHREME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z—=ZF—=

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 12
Amendments to
HKAS 32
HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2012

Consolidated Financial Statements’

Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’
Fair Values Measurement!

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income?®

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Employee Benefits’

Separate Financial Statements!

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of A Surface Mine!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBREME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z-F——FNA=+HILFZE

2.

P

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32
OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7
DISCLOSURES - OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for
financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
also be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective
until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with retrospective application required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

- HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z —%
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair
value of a financial liability (designated as at fair value
through profit or loss) attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may not have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z _—%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 July 2013
and that the application of the new standard may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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P
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
PRESENTATION OF ITEMS OF OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

An error in the consolidated financial statements was
identified by the directors of the Company subsequent to
the issue of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2011. The adjustment represented
correction of error in relation to the incorrect classification of
the contingent consideration for the acquisition of Ease Ray
Limited (the “Ease Ray Acquisition”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e & B R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (Continued)

Pursuant to the conditional agreement dated 3 June
2010 entered into between the Company and Mr. Chu
Yip Wah (the “Ease Ray Vendor”) in relation to the Ease
Ray Acquisition (the “Ease Ray Agreement”), a maximum
of 210,000,000 new shares (after the share consolidation
effective from 30 June 2011), subject to the downward
adjustment, to be issued by the Company to the Ease
Ray Vendor as part of the contingent consideration of
the Ease Ray Acquisition (the “Ease Ray Second Batch
Consideration Shares”). The Company has recognised the
fair value of the Ease Ray Second Batch Consideration
Shares in “Capital and Other Reserve” as an equity in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2011. During the current year, the directors of the
Company discovered that the number of the Ease Ray
Second Batch Consideration Shares to be issued would
vary depending on the audited results of Ease Ray Limited
(“Ease Ray”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Ease Ray Group”) for the year ended 31 December
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2011. Therefore, according to HKFRS 3 “Business FEFLPTIEIE:
Combination”, the fair value of the Ease Ray Second Batch
Consideration Shares at the date of acquisition shall be
classified as the financial liability instead of equity and the
directors have made such correction in the current year as
follows:
30 June 30 June
2011 Adjustment 2011
—T——fF —F——
~NA=+H AR RNA=TAH
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHETT FHETT FET
(As originally
stated) (As restated)
(REZ7) (&e&E7)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Contingent consideration payable &1t sk A (B - 220,500 220,500
Total effect on liability HEEZRATE - 220,500 220,500
HEFEEEEERAR e —E—_4£5RK
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3.

P

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (Continued)

3. BEFEAE @

30 June 30 June
2011 Adjustment 2011
—F—F —
~NA=+H #FE  RNA=1+H
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHT FET FHET

(As originally
stated) (As restated)
(REZ5]) (gg=E75))

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE

Capital and other reserve BEAR R 238,090 (220,500) 17,590
Total effect on equity HER2BETE 238,090 (220,500) 17,590

The effect of error described above has no effect on the
consolidated loss for the year ended 30 June 2011 and
consolidated statement of financial position at 30 June
2010.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
the special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from 1 July 2010
onwards).

4.

BARZETHER (8)

TEEHBREIIWT -

mEEE
HFEMBRRMHARRBRBHARRFF
ZHIERE (EMBELAR) (BRERFHIE R
B CHBEHRE -EARNRAAEA—
RER VB LELRRARE RS S
TERUM 255 - RUAR S AR I o

RAFANBARELZHBRARES
HKEEMAMEREEHEE WA
I (HER) AR A 2 ERER

WELE 2HHBLRZMBHRERME
HBERE RCHSTRREALAEEEM
XERBIFTERAE B

BESRERRRIRZRS ik WAR
B SR A B AR BUR 3 -

M8~z SRR s AR B AT A
RS-

PEREEEREREZIFZRE
i
HEARZ2ERESRAXQEES R
EARDAIRAE AR R ER B
SBEFFERESEBLAEE (8=
TRFELA-ARER)

=

HEHEEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR

57



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another standard.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each
step. Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,

the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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4.

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company directly
or indirectly controls more than half of the voting power,
or controls the composition of the board of directors.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
financial statements at cost less impairment loss.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of telecommunication products are
recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Artiste management fee income is recognised when
services are provided.

Film exhibition income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of distribution
rights over films is recognised upon delivery of the pre-
recorded audio visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the customers in
accordance with the terms of the contracts.

Traffic signboard advertising income is recognised when
services are provided.

Provision of agency services for sale of telecommunication
products is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=F——FNHA=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress (“CIP”), held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised accumulated impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

CIP, which is mainly represent traffic signboards, is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct cost incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. No depreciation is provided on CIP.
CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

FILM RIGHTS, FILM IN PROGRESS AND
FILM ROYALTY DEPOSITS

(i) Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified accumulated
impairment losses. Upon the release of the pre-
recorded audio visual products and the materials,
film rights are amortised at rates calculated to write
off the costs in production to the expected revenues
from exhibition, reproduction and distribution of audio
visual products, the licensing of video rights and
other broadcast rights following their release. Such
rates are on a systematic basis, with reference to the
projected revenue and the underlying licence periods,
and are subject to annual review by the directors of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FILM RIGHTS, FILM IN PROGRESS AND
FILM ROYALTY DEPOSITS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Film in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any identified
accumulated impairment losses. Costs include all
direct costs associated with the production of films.
Provisions are made against costs which are in
excess of future revenue expected to be generated
by these films. The balance of film production
costs not yet due at year end are disclosed as
commitments. The costs of films in progress are
transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by installments
under licensing agreements for distribution of audio
visual products and sub-licensing of film titles, in
specified geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. The balance
payables under the licensing agreements are
disclosed as commitments. Upon the release of the
pre-recorded audio visual products and the materials,
the relevant portion of licence fees of purchased fim
titles are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a systematic basis, with
reference to the projected revenue and the underlying
licence periods. Provision for impairment loss is
made against deposits to the extent that they are
not expected to generate any future revenue for the
Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FILM RIGHTS, FILM IN PROGRESS AND
FILM ROYALTY DEPOSITS (Continued)

(iii) Film royalty deposits (Continued)

In case where the Group is unable to exercise its
rights under a licensing agreement because the film
producer fails to complete the film, the Group writes
off the differences between the advances made
and the estimated recoverable amount from the film
producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and
external market information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that film rights, films
in progress and film royalty deposits are impaired.
If any such indication exits, the carrying amount of
such assets is assessed and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

LEASING (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=F——FNHA=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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4.

o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

4.

P

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing finished goods for resale, are
stated at the lower of costs and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of asset within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan and loan interest receivables and
cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period ranging from 90 to 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), of which the interest
expense is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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4.

P

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes at fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals and contingent consideration
payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes designated at FVTPL

Convertible notes issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) are designated as FVTPL on
initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, the entire convertible
notes are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

4.

BAREETHER (8)

@I A @)
cHMEBEERATIR (@)

FEE AR m R IK 2\ FIEA SR Y ]
eSS

AEBHETH AR RE (2EEBHRA
AOTETR) R P R 1T A& R
RIEAFEAR - RS HERRNETER
SR 2EARRRBERAFERE
MAFEZSRELHEEREIRSHE

7
e

#% 1E FERR
EREERSREZANENERE
IREMEERZEEMBRZBAED
DR R E T 5 B AKE
FERIERSHEE - WMAKELEE
RTEREAMEBEZBARD AR KE
w VHERFESREE AAKESE
BUAERKB2EZIREENRE RRE
RZBEENERRBEE  WAKEIR
HEZRTREERAE BRI ER
LO#H AEEelERATREE I
AP UCER 2 P 1S SR RE R AR (G 5K -

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z —%

4.

e

——FNA=FHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE
ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF
GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE
ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF
GOODWILL ABOVE) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

4.

P

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where effect of the time
value of money is material).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACQUIRED
IN A BUSINESS COMBINATION

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
are initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.
At the end of the subsequent reporting periods, such
contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees
(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREETBUR (#)
(Continued)
RELATED PARTIES (Continued) BEEAL @
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) BALTAEFE TINEFN—EEEZ
conditions applies: T
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEER-—5%H
same group; Z KB AT

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of film rights, film
in progress and film royalty deposits

Impairment assessment on film rights, films in progress
and film royalty deposits are performed at the end of
each reporting period with reference to both internal and
external market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective titles, the
expected production, sales and distribution costs to be
reviewed to conclude the sale and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 30 June 2012,
the carrying value of film rights, films in progress and fim
royalty deposits is HKD1,827,000 (2011: HKD®,042,000).
Changes in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional provision
being made in the consolidated financial statements.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 30 June 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to approximately HKD351,528,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss amounted to approximately
HKD547,353,000). Details of the calculation of the
recoverable amount are disclosed in Note 23.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of convertible notes at fair
value through profit or loss

The fair value of the convertible notes designated at fair value
through profit or loss is derived mainly from the application
of the Monte Carlo Simulation model. The Monte Carlo
Simulation model incorporates market data and involves
uncertainty in estimates used by management in the
assumptions. Because the Monte Carlo Simulation model
requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Details of the assumptions are disclosed in Note 35.

Determination of fair values of identifiable
intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of
the reporting period or recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In the absence of
an active market for the business combination/acquisition
transactions undertaken by the Group, in order to
determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates according to the valuation results produced by
external valuers. During the year ended 30 June 2012,
the fair value of identifiable intangible assets arising from
the acquisition of Smart Long Limited (“Smart Long”) is
approximately HKD31,802,000. Details of the identifiable
intangible assets are disclosed in Note 25.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables, loan and loan interest
receivables and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2012,
the carrying amount of trade receivables, loan and loan
interest receivables and other receivables is approximately
HKD80,098,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HKD41,000) (2011: HKD54,724,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of nil), HKD56,349,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of nil) (2011: HKD17,873,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of nil) and HKD34,662,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debt of HKD1,157,000)
(2011: HKD50,359,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HKD632,000), respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimate are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD31,869,000 (2011: HKD17,881,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. In
case where there are future profits generated to utilise the
tax losses, a material deferred tax asset may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which such profits
are recorded.

Determination of fair value of contingent
consideration payable

The Group has accounted for the contingent consideration
in the Ease Ray Acquisition. The number of shares of the
Ease Ray Second Batch Consideration shares is subject
to the results of the Ease Ray Group for the year ended
31 December 2011. The Group based on the fair value of
the Ease Ray Second Batch Consideration Shares at the
date of acquisition of Ease Ray Group and the directors’
best estimate and weighted probability analysis of the
future profit of Ease Ray Group to determine the provision
to be made in respect of such contingent consideration.
As the process requires input of subjective assumptions,
any changes to the assumptions can materially affect
the provision made. Subsequent gain or loss in fair value
is recognised in profit or loss. As at 30 June 2011, total
provision made in respect of contingent consideration by
the Group amounted to approximately HKD220,500,000
and was included in contingent consideration payable.
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6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes convertible notes payable disclosed in Note 35,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of the existing debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ®RITH
A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL A) £@TEHEHA
INSTRUMENTS
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEx FiET
(Restated)
(gE75))
Financial assets EMEE
Loan and receivables (including cash B & JEWFUIAE (815
and cash equivalents) RehkFeEEY)
Trade receivables B 5 ERERR 80,098 54,724
Deposits and other receivables 1B e R H A BN EIR 35,406 51,156
Loan and loan interest receivables EUREREERFE 56,349 17,873
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 7,671 12,202
179,524 135,955
Financial liabilities tREE
At amortised cost bizg - SN
Trade payables B HRMNERNK 7,854 37,497
Other payables and accruals H b IER
&t IR 21,702 48,716
Contingent consideration payable FERSARE - 220,500
At fair value through profit or loss LIERREATFEAR
Convertible notes payables R BmREE - 24,801
29,556 331,514

TEHEEEEERAR e ZE—Z_FFR



7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan and
loan interest receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
contingent consideration payable and convertible
notes payable. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency and
interest rates. Market risk exposures are further
measured by sensitivity analysis. There has been
no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk. Details of each type of market risks
are described as follows:

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) SRIT A (@)
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B) eREKREEREREE
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
Currency risk (Continued) G E B ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RMB denominated RIFERR NEBIUARBTE
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of ZEBEEREKAENREELR
reporting period are as follows: T
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FHET
Assets BE 178,029 58,993
Liabilities BfE (27,876) (30,180)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management has
closely monitored the Group’s foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is exposed to the currency of the PRC (i.e:
RMB).

TEHEEEEERAR e ZE—Z_FFR

7R & [ 3R B I 4 AR 1S b K
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e

B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2011: 5%) increase and decrease in HKD
against RMB. 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitively analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for 5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loan and loan interest receivables, trade
payables, other payables and accruals. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
loss where HKD strengthen 5% (2011: 5%) against
RMB. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening of HKD
against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss and the balances below would be
negative.

7.

ST A (@)

B) ¢riEREEEEREEK
()
SRk (@)
BT AT ()

TERFANAEBHBTHEARKE
FEMEESS (ZE——%F:5%)
ZHREE 5% (ZT——F :5%)
BAXTEEEABRENIBINE
BB EF TR 2 R R ERIRE
BEYIINEEEZABAE

ZEHE SRR E DT E B IE AN
SFEZMAFAEMIEE  WHR®R
SHEIRFABEE KRR HNE B
R75% (ZT——F:5%) &g
FRESNTEIEE S EBER &
eREMERFE RekBeE
BY BUREFREFMNE -ES
FEASHBR R~ Ho At B A5 5K IE K JE 53K
He FOEBRRBITLHEAREF
B5% (ZT——F:5% ) 88
Bt E1838 0 - 8T H A RKE
B5% (ZF——%F:5%) B&y
BREXNSERERZEZE KT
et RAH-

2012 2011
—E—C—fF —T——%F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER FHET
Loss for the year FAEE
- RVMB —AER¥ 7,508 1,441
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the fixed-rate loan receivables for both
years.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances carried at prevailing
market rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note.

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2012, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss before tax for the year and
accumulated losses would increase or decreased
by approximately HKD85,000 (2011: increased
by approximately HKD131,000 and HKD4,000
respectively). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to floating interest rates of the bank
balance.

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. @R THE @
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B) RIEAREEEEREE
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (@)
(Continued)
Credit risk EERR

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties provided by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has reviewed the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivables, other receivables,
loan and loan interest receivables at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made to irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 68.9%
(2011: 38.5%) of trade receivables arising from the
provision of traffic signboard advertising service,
was due from the Group’s major customer in the
PRC, EMEREBEER AR (‘BEXR"). The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (2011:
97.1%) of total trade receivables as at 30 June 2012.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
authorised banks in the PRC with high-credit ratings.

Operational risk

The Group’s exposure to operational risk is primarily
attributable to heavy reliance on E X, the major
customer of the Group in the PRC, for the provision
of traffic signboard advertising service to &R
amounted to approximately HKD73,290,000 (2011:
Approximately HKD6,720,000) which accounted for
approximately 73.2% (2011: 24.7%) of the Group’s
total turnover for the year ended 30 June 2012. The
directors are closely monitoring the performance and
financial position of &% and are planning to expand
its traffic signboard advertising service to reduce the
concentration of the operational risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. TR ITAum
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B) ¢REMREEEERKE
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk mEE & R R
In management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEERHESLRREBESR A
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash EBESENVAEEEERATH
equivalents deemed adequate by the management W4 RIBLZEEYKE BAE
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the B LB IR E S W KRS TR
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. AT
The following table details the Group’s remaining TERZMPARNEBIETES T E
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial EHTAYMEHIHAR « 27 & IR
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the LB ERAEE AL EREE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based HEEEENRLEEAEE AE
on the earliest date on which the Group can be SRR R TR AR AL
required to pay. The table includes both interest and S8 R BRI B TR B
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows BIRTIE T KBS EE IR IE R &
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived BRI R Gt E B -
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.
Liquidity tables FEEaex
Weighted
average Repayable on Total
effective demand or  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  within 1 year cash flow amounts
mEFH EEX= AR
BERAZ R-FAkE RLRBAR REE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
ThER TR TER
At 30 June 2012 R-E-ZFXA=tH
Trade payables ZHRFER - 7,854 7,854 7,854
Other payables and accruals Hiv (I R AT 3UR - 21,702 21,702 21,702
29,556 29,556 29,556
HEHEEREARAR e ZE-—ZFFR
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7.

e

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. @I E @
B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B) RIEAREEEEREE
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBETAR (®)
Liquidiity tables (Continued) TEE LK (&)
Weighted
average  Repayable on Total
effective demand or  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate within 1 year cash flow amounts
T EEH RERZ
ERFE R-FREE RensLE RHME
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000
FET FAT FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&mE5) (EE5) (mE5)
At 30 June 2011 RZZ——%XA=1H
Trade payables EHRFER - 37,497 37,497 37,497
Other payables and accruals H e 3R R ERT VR - 48,716 48,716 48,716
Contingent consideration payable &3k AHK B - 220,500 220,500 220,500
Convertble notes payable (Note) ~ JEfT AT AR Z 4% (Mt 5F) 8% 27,000 27,000 24,801
333,713 333,713 331,514
Note: The undiscounted amount represented the MEE:  REVRSFEIERRIIEAI &

redemption amount on maturity on the assumption
that there was no conversion prior to maturity.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. T H m)
C) FAIR VALUE C) NEE
The fair value of financial liabilities are determined as cRHEBEZATFEEFENT:

follows:

the fair value of financial liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

the fair value of financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis;

the fair value of derivative instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, use is made
of discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and
option pricing models for optional derivatives;
and

the fair value of financial guarantee contracts
is determined using option pricing models
where the main assumptions are the probability
of default by the specified counterparty
extrapolated from market-based credit
information and the amount of loss, given the
default.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. =@ T H )
C) FAIR VALUE (Continued) C) A¥E@m

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
Level 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

- Level 1:  fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in market for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2:  fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the assets
or liability, either directly (i.e. prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3:  fair value measurements are
those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. @R T H )
C) FAIR VALUE (Continued) C) A¥Ewu#@
At 30 June 2011 R-E——FXA=1+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B-H ot =8 @t
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
TiER FEL TER TET
Liabilities =L
Contingent consideration payable kAR B - 220,500 - 220,500
Convertble notes payable ERTARE - 24,801 - 24,801
- 245,301 - 245,301
There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in the RAFERBAEFE F—RFE=
current and prior year. A2 D fE A ] S % o
Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Br EXCFEE N R ARESR
Company consider that the carrying amounts of B RESREERERBECE
financial assets and financial liabilities of each class HEHEERE AFERSE-
approximate to their corresponding fair values.
8. TURNOVER 8. EXH

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold or services provided by the Group
to outside customers, less returns and discounts and sales
related taxes.

EXRBEAKERISEFHEEY K
R IR < B U N B URIRFER - &40
BRORE TN HE AR
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8.

TURNOVER (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year, from

8. EHER (4)

AEERBEEEBZFNEEROM

continuing operations, is as follows: wm
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHERT FHET
Continuing operations BHERSEER
Sales of telecommunication products and  $4 & & 51 & 4 &
provision of wireless services R E R IR 9,108 15,191
Traffic signboard advertising income RiBIEREESBA 91,072 11,972
100,180 27,163
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. EMbUt A KU s
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains for the AEBERBIFBELCEEH 2 FANEMK
year, from continuing operations, is as follows: ARWESITOT
2012 2011
—E-CF —FE——%F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET T
Continuing operations BESEER
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 10 5
Exchange gain, net B 5 2 - F R - 69
Commission income EEACON 1,114 9,267
Sundry income FMIEWA 170 1,711
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - HE K
plant and equipment B W 443 -
Loan interest income B B A 1,385 -
Waived of debt of other payables R e EM BN RIBE 2
&% 58 -
Reversal of impairment loss in BE ZEBERF
respect of trade receivables o REEE - 806
Reversal of impairment loss in LA FE W FRIE
respect of other receivables BE 2 RESE - 167
3,180 12,025

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

- Film exhibition, film rights licensing and sub-licensing

- Artiste management

- Sales of telecommunication products and providing
wireless services

- Traffic signboard advertising

The operating segments regarding the film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing and artiste management
were discontinued during the year ended 30 June 2012.
The segment information reported below does not include
any amounts for these discontinued operations, which are
described in more detail in Note 15.

10.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(A) SEGMENT REVENUES AND
RESULTS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover

and results from continuing operations by reportable
and operating segment:

For the year ended 30 June
Continuing operations

Sales of

telecommunication
products and providing
wireless services

HEBMERR

REREHES

2012 2011
—g--f —F--%

HKD’000 HKD’000

(A) 7B EREE

B 2MEEEDEE D 2 AER
REFBECEER 2 CEBRER
DITWR

BEAAZTHLEEFE

HEREXR
Traffic signboard
advertising Consolidated
RBETRES ga
2012 2011 2012 2011

“§--F -T-—% -§-F -T—%
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000

TERT FAR TET FET THET FEL

(Restated)

(m=51)

Turnover £ 9,108 15,191 91,072 11,972 100,180 27,163

Segment results BERE (135,242) 19208 (498,110) 5807 (633,352) 25,125

Interest income M A 1,373 5

Unallocated corporate income &2 & A AJMA 219,707 15
Unallocated corporate KAEARRAL

expenses (42,275) (62,177)

Unallocated finance costs FABBERKK (1,308) (222)

Loss before tax BEATEE (455,852) (27,254)

Income tax credit (expense) FERES (%) 35,630 (3,809)

Loss for the year FRER (420,222) (31,063)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 4. Segment results represent the
profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of interest income, share-based payments
expenses, central administration costs, directors’
emoluments and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

REDRZ GRTBEREM AR 2 AN
BEtBRMER - DEEEES D BM
WEZm A, EEZEBE LESER
B AR SERZARER R
TRER BEFTMELBERAN 1 II5
BERDERRBRFEMA T ZLERE
EEITERZT L
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. &R (@)

(B) SEGMENT ASSETS AND (B)
LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities from continuing operations by reportable
segment:

At 30 June

Continuing operations

THEERAE

AEBRAIZERDBIFBREE
BEERBEITWT:

RANA=t1H

Sales of
telecommunication
products and providing Traffic signboard
wireless services advertising Consolidated
HEEHRERR
REBKKRH RBETRES Ga
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

—8--f -3T-——% ZB-=fF
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000
FET FAET FHT

2% ZB-Zf _"T——F
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FET THRT FAR
(Restated)

(&5

Segment assets PEEE 39,883 62,207 569,213 986,635 609,006 1,048,842
Unallocated corporate assets KA EAFGIEE 69,349 166,891
Total segment assets NEEERE 678,445 1,215,733
Assets relating to BRI MR R K

discontinued operations BEZAE 15,874 75,851
Consolidated assets BEEE 694,319 1,201,584
Segment liabilties %ﬁﬁf 31,504 6,045 27,173 80,499 58,767 86,744
Unallocated corporate liabiliies 7 9 it 16,625 264,409
Total segment liabiliies NEEREAE 75,392 351,153
Liabilties relating to HEPEEEY

discontinued operations BHzEE

1,874 55,104

Consolidated liabilites ~ G&&&

83,266 406,257

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances REED

and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments -
other than unallocated corporate assets (mainly
comprising certain of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and loan and loan interest
receivables); and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments -
other than unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly comprising receipt in advances,
contingent consideration payable, other
payables and accruals).

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the year ended 30 June

10. D& R ()

(C) HittnEER
BEAAZ=1THLEE

Continuing operations HEREXRS
Sales of
telecommunication
products and providing Traffic signboard
wireless services advertising Unallocated Consolidated
HEEAERR
REERRE REETRES FAR &a
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“2-Zf -Z--% ZB-Zf -"FI--F ZB-Zf -"T--F ZE-Zf -"T-——F
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
Thn ThT FhL ThET FHT T T#x ThET
Amounts included in the HRABEE
measure of segment FEgEnes:
results
Capital expenditure BARY 39,834 16 1,705 215,720 - 1,39 41,539 217,132
Galn on settlement of contingent 4 E FE (8 A A B 2 Yz
consideration payable - - - - (183,415) - (183,415) -
Depreciation of property, nE BEREETE
plant and equipment 2,247 417 6,426 1,044 854 304 9,527 5,519
Amortisation of intangiole BRAERH
assets 5,436 - 45,705 3,098 - - 51,141 3,098
(Gain) loss on disposal LENE BERIEZ
of property, plant and (W&)EB
equipment - " - - (443) - (443) 1
Impairment loss recognised in -~ $t41% ~ BiE Rk R
respect of property, RERE
plant and equipment 6,754 - 107 - - - 6,861 -
Impairment loss recognised i~ SHET & EHF
respect of intangible assets REEE 10,231 - 99,085 - - - 109,316 -
Impaiment loss recognised in ~ FEERAZ AR
respect of goodwill 115,803 - 425,655 - - - 541,458 -
Impairment loss recognised in -~ 18 ZERETBRZ
respect of trade receivables  IfEEE - - 4 - - - 4 -
Impairment loss recognised in 577 SR A 2R EEE
respect of inventories 800 - - - - - 800 -
Impaiment loss recognised I 3t £ t BT AR
respect of other receivables  FIEESE 2 514 605 - - - 607 514
Reversal of impaiment lossin 3t % SEWEFH &R 2
respect of trade receivables REEE - (806) - - - - - (806)
Reversal of impaiment lossin Bt E i EWZERD 2
respect of other receivables  RERE - (167) - - - - - (167)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. &R (@)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HitnB|EH (m)
(Continued)

FEREXEH |
HE-_Z2——FA=THIHF
ENEAREPREREBEREBE
HETREMEENRE  ©FH
7%31,840,0008 7T (ZF —— 4
202,269,000/ 7T ) °

Continuing operations (Continued)

Capital expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2012
includes additions resulted from acquisition through
business combinations, amounting to approximately
HKD31,840,000 (2011: HKD202,269,000).

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating FHRETFEELERREEBTE
decision maker but not included in the measure of SR BEER D BEETENS
segment results or segment assets: #:
Continuing operations BREEER
Sales of
telecommunication
products and providing Traffic signboard
wireless services advertising Unallocated Consolidated
HEEAERR
REERRHE REETRES KR &a
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
-%--% -%-——% ZB--f -T-—% -%--f -T--% ZB--f —T--F%
HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000
TET TEL TER TiEr TET TEL TER TFign
(Restated)
(m=51)
Interest income FIEMA 39 2 1,333 1 1 2 1,373 5
Finance costs BERAK - - - - 1,305 222 1,305 202
Income tax credit (expense)  FIEHEE (%) 5916 (2317) 29,714 (1,492) - - 35,630 (3,809)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

10. D& R ()

(C) HitnB|EH (m)

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about major customers

Turnover from continuing operations from major
customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as
follows:

FEEPZEH
HREE IV AR F R (A
MEEBRBIONN KA TERF
ZHEEMT

Continuing operations HELSEER 2012 2011
—E—C—fF —ET——%F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FExT FHET

'Customer A TEBA N/A 7F3E 3 15,191
2Customer B 22 EB 73,290 6,720
73,290 21,911

! Turnover from sales of telecommunication products
and provision of wireless services

2 Turnover from traffic signboard advertising

8 The corresponding turnover did not contribute
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group in the
respective year

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations from external customers is
presented based on the geographical location of the
customer.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. &R (@)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) Efbmp EER (&)

(Continued)

Turnover by geographical market WEMGZEEXR
Continuing operations BBEEEER 2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
Name of the country hE E B FHET FAT
Hong Kong BB - -
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE (TEIEEE) 100,180 27,163
100,180 27,163

Information about the Group’s non-current assets,
other than film rights, film in progress and film
royalty deposits and deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary, is presented based on the geographical

BERASEZFERBDEE (EXMR
B HEREEANEZREREAR
G Ll b= PN AR SR 2l 3
SMZEBERDREEZWREN 2

location of the assets. e
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
Name of the country EE B FET T
Hong Kong A 573 872
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) PR (TEIEREE) 439,481 993,474
440,054 994,346
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

12.

P

11. E KA

2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FTEx FHET
Continuing operations BREREER
Effective interest charged on convertible FLIEAT Al AR BB AR 2
notes payable (Note 35) EIRFE (M5E35) 1,305 222
INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 12, IS (%) X
2012 2011
—E——F T ——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER FHET
Continuing operations BREREER
Current tax: RIHARR I8 -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBBNER - -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEEMEH 11,577 4,584
Over-provision for prior year BEFEBEEG (3,323) -
Deferred tax (Note 38) EIERITE (MT5E38) (43,884) (775)
(35,630) 3,809

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. Hong
Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both
years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries are 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, a subsidiary of the Company, being qualified as
a new and high technology enterprise, is eligible for a
preferential Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 12. FREH (BR) Hx< @)
(Continued)
The income tax (credit) expense for the years can be FAFRGH (KR AXHEGEE2EKES
reconciled to the loss before tax from continuing operations KANRERBELEREG CRBAIEEY
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income R
as follows:
2012 2011
—E2—_F —E——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
Continuing operations BHERSEER FET FAT
Loss before tax: B 150 A 18 (455,852) (27,254)
Tax at applicable domestic income tax rate 1% & 1 1@ Fl &9 Fr 15 B B &
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) 16.5%=T H 818
(ZE——%:16.5%) (75,216) (4,497)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BB E TR
for tax purpose 2B E 121,588 6,979
Tax effect of income not taxable MBS BERD
for tax purpose WA Z TR 2 (36,085) M)
Over-provision for prior year BAFE 2 HBERE (3,323) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEEZ
MB & 2,732 618
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRI ARER
not recognised A EE (424) -
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERUMBEREZRE
differences not recognised Mg E (43,884) (7795)
Tax effect of different tax rates of RE A BLERE R E
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdicton ~ FIBARIMH R ZR 2
MR E (1,018) 1,485
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FRFFEH (ER)HX (35,630) 3,809
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused RBEBAR AEENABABRIES
tax losses of approximately HKD31,869,000 (2011: B #931,869,0008 L (=T ——F:
HKD17,881,000) available to offset against future profits. 17,881,000/ 7T ) A] AR SH R RO A
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the FR A IR 2 1) DA TR - B S R R
unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses IERG IR E FE o B IR B 18 o ] fR PR A At g o

may be carried forward indefinitely.

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 38. EIERIA 2 7B A 738 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

13. LOSS BEFORE TAX

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

13. Br T BT ES 18

2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEx FHET
Loss before tax has been arrived at after B FiATE B E k% (5FA)
charging (crediting): AT&IE:
Staff costs, including BIA BIEESHS
directors’ remuneration (Note 17) (MI&E17)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENEMET 7,900 2,735
— Share-based payments — AR BETE R 3R - 37,999
— Contributions to retirement benefit — R FIET &R
schemes 20 12
Total staff costs BETIRA 7,920 40,746
Depreciation of property, W HE REETE
plant and equipment 9,627 5,519
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 51,141 3,098
Impairment loss recognised in RIFEWRZBEEE
respect of inventories 800 -
Impairment loss recognised in WME G EBARRER
respect of trade receivables REEE 41 -
Impairment loss recognised in L E b FE R IB T RR
respect of other receivables FEEE 607 514
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ¥ E BB M &
property, plant and equipment R ZBEEE 6,861 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEEEEWRR
intangible assets B E B 109,316 _
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - WEREH 2
plant and equipment (Yz) B (443) 11
Share-based payments — consultant LARR 15 B E TR B 1 3R
— B - 332
Agency fee for referring investment projects NM4AREER 2 H N & 30,813 -
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z B R0 B € 921 2,450
Minimum lease payments under operating HHME Z EEHERN
lease in respect of rented premises FIERBER 8,276 3,210
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR S 2 7 &R A 75 -
Reversal of impairment loss in B HEWERERERE 2
respect of trade receivables WEERE = (806)
Reversal of impairment loss in BEE b pE YR IR
respect of other receivables BE 2 REEE - (167)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BIREE
FROM CONTINUING AND REFERKRILEREER
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RABER ANEEIFERE I EER
attributable to owners of the Company for the year from FAGRERREFEEB IR TEE
continuing and discontinued operations is based on the E:

following data:

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEx FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of XA Bl A A &G F R
the Company and loss for the purpose of  E 1B & K AR FTE SR
basic and diluted loss per share HARBEEIE 2 EE 465,153 36,254

Number of shares

R EE

2012 2011

—E——F —T——F

’000 ‘000

F & Fh&%
Weighted average number of ARETESRER K
ordinary shares for the purpose of BEsBE s LTER

basic and diluted loss per share REFEH B 2,164,996 1,603,724
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14, FIREE (#)
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS REFELKEEL
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from ARARBEEANBLBESEER 2R
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the AR EBEIVZATEGTE

Company is based on the following data:

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ ZAN2Q A1 A A 1S
the Company and loss for the purpose FABEEARGE
of basic and diluted loss per share FRERRBEESE
BB 465,153 36,254
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued i : 4% |F&E L 27 2
operations FAEE (10,897) (1,956)
Loss for the purpose of basic and ARETERELE
diluted loss per share from continuing X BREARR
operations BEEE B 454,256 34,298

Notes: B 5 -

(1) The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended (1) HBR{TERRREARITEZERESE
30 June 2012 does not assume the conversion of the BEANBREBRY  WEFEHE=
Company’s outstanding share options since their exercise T-——FXNAZTRHLEFEZSRES
would result in a decrease in loss per share for the year. EREETERIBBEEHR-

(2)  The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended (2 ERITEARRR M ARITE 2 BARE &)
30 June 2011 does not assume the conversion of the BREHRARFITHAREROSEH
Company’s outstanding share options and convertible notes FREREBERD BWEFTEHEZE-Z
and the issuance of the contingent consideration shares ——FRNAZTHIEFEBREEE
since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per BRI EREE LRk T
share for the year.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RERIEREETK

The basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued HE_ZT——-—F~A=+BHLEFE"

operations for the year ended 30 June 2012 is HKO0.50 BRI EEB 2 ERERNREEEIE

cents (2011: HKO0.12 cents) per share, based on the ABEROSEM (T ——F:012/8
loss for the year from the discontinued operations of W) - DREKREEEEB2FANE

approximately HKD10,897,000 (2011: HKD1,956,000) and 8 4910,897,0008 L (=T —— 4

the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted 1,956,000 ) & E X EFLAIEETE &

loss per share. RERR#EEE 2 DB METE -
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wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s circular dated 13 July
2012, the Company entered into a sale agreement on
21 June 2012 with a purchaser (the “Purchaser”), an
independent third party, in respect of the disposal of
100% equity interests in Getbetter Enterprises Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Getbetter
Group”) and B&S Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “B&S Group”) at a consideration
of HKD8,000,000, payable in cash (the “Disposal”). The
principal activities of Getbetter Group and B&S Group
are engaged in the production and sales of videos and
films, the licensing of video and copyrights/films rights and
artiste management. The Disposal was effected in order to
generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s other
businesses. Pursuant to the Company’s announcement
dated 31 July 2012, the disposal was duly passed on an
extraordinary general meeting held on 31 July 2012. Up to
the date of this report, the Disposal is still in processing.

The loss for the year from discontinued operations for film
exhibition, film rights licensing and sub-licensing and artiste
management is analysed as follows:

15, 8 R E 7%

BEARABEHAEA=-ZZ—ZFtA
TZRAZAEK ARBRERZE-F
ANAZt—BHeBYE=ZFEH([H
7 1) RIS E 1 R 0 A H & Getbetter
Enterprises Limited & H [} & 2 7] (%
78 5 [ Getbetter2 @] ) A X B&S Group
Limited X H i B A & (478 & [B&S
SB])z100%REAER RER
8,000,000 7T - BB & X ([HEFE
18]) ° Getbetters [# 2 B&S&E B = £t
FRERHEREGTRYA BEEE
BIREREEREUAREATRER-
HEZTENAELAREREEERAE
EEMEBFERAMET - RIBEARAFH
MAE-_T——F+tA=+—HZAMH"
HEEEEIR T —F+tA=+—H
BOzBRRENASLEFXABB-EE
ARERHE HESEMLETH

REBEHMM B RERE R REIN
MEANEBERINCEEER 2 TANE
BoOfmT:

2012 2011

—E-——fF —T——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FET

Loss for the year FREE 3,755 1,956
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ~ FEFEHEEEMRZ

assets held for sale B E R 7,142 -

10,897 1,956
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15, #% | 4F &5 S 7% ()

e

N

The results of the film exhibition, film rights licensing and FEARRE R EWE RN 2 BRI %
sub-licensing and artiste management, which have been HREEEZIREAREAETE 2 EE
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive m

income, were as follows:

2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——%
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER FHBT
Turnover EER 2,646 18,093
Cost of sales 55 & A AR (286) (8,639)
Other income and gains H A Rk as 154 265
Selling and marketing costs HE RMIGHEREKAR (392) (3,923)
Administrative and other expenses TR HE A E A (5,917) (7,714)
Finance costs b & P AR = 1
Loss before tax MR ATE 1B (3,795) (1,919)
Income tax credit (expense) i e (F) 40 (37)
Loss for the year FAER (3,755) (1,956)
Cash flow from discontinued operation: RERIEREEEK 2
ReneE:

Net cash outflow from operating activities 2 [ 48 & %75 2
RemtFEE (223) (5,217)

Net cash outflow from investing activites ~ KB IR & EE 2
R F5E (13) (102)

Net cash outflow from financing activites ~ K BB & & 8) 2
BemdiFeE - 1)
Net cash outflow HeREFE (236) (5,340)
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wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING

16. ETRA (FEIEE =

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTYS) ®)
2012 2011
= —F—F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENMEMETR 7,552 2,114
Share-based payments VAR% 19 BB B 15 5K - 23,065
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 3R /A48 R 5T 2| £ 2X 18 11
7,570 25,190
HONG KONG BE

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group companies
(the “Employer”) operated in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the
employee’s earning as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation.

THE PRC, OTHER THAN HONG KONG

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all
its employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payables to
all retired employees. Under the state-sponsored retirement
plan, the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions.

BT EEREARAR o

AEERZFEBRESHBFERHIME
REE A EEHIREN R ELEER
g ([BERE)) - BESHIBR R
EHRFRARAE ABUXFAABTE R
ERBESHE AKRERETELLENE
RERR ([EBX]) REEBRESABLA
FREEMNSRIA (EERBHMEATES
AR A SR -

HE - BB

R B SR FOERRE  AEER
FREIR ZHMBARARMAREBFDL
B 5 R 48 I 5T &I 3R - B ZOR K48 7
AR ERMERKER XN 2ERIK
T - RBEIZERAKBHEE - AEEGE
FHFINBEHEREARE B IORIK
&8 M 1 AR AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERMET

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

' = A
17. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 17. EEM e
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 4 (2011: 6) NS ENTIE(ZE——F: 68)&E
directors was as follows: EZMEWT
2012 2011
—%--f —3——F
Salaries, Contributions Salaries,  Contributions
wages  to retirement Share- wages to retirement Share-
and other benefits based and other benefits based
Names of directors EEfE Fees benefits schemes  payments Total Fees beneits schemes payments Total
§o 18R BHET HRHBA %% IER RIFER IR B
e HiEH HHER EROAR it Be Eftiad HEfR ERBAR it
HKD'00)  HKD'0OD  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOD  HKDOOD  HKDOOD  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKD'0OO
Fan Fin FiEn Fi#n Fiin T FAL FAL FAL FHL
Executive directors: YIES:
Mr. Li Hongrong 37 T3 - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Zhibin (Note &) AEEEE (Hita) - 26 1 - 27 3 480 - 4978 5489
M. Theo EDE (Note b} Theo EDE 4 (D) = 1 1 = 12 b - - - 0
Mr. Ou Bai (Note ) Bk (Mic) - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhou W (Note d) £lkE (Hitd) - - - - - - 31 1 - 2
Mr. Zhang Fan (Note ¢) R LA (Histe) - - - - - - - - 4,978 4,978
Mr. Hu Yangjun (Note f) Hiat A (M) - - - - - - - - 4,978 4,978
Mr. Zhang Xinyu (Note g) FHFEE (ko) - 51 - - 51 - - - - -
Independent BUkHTES:
non-executive directors:
M. Hu Yangjun (Note f) HBE L (K - - - - - - - - - -
Professor Song Junde (Note ) REEAR (M) - - - - - - - - - -
Professor Chen Lujun (Note | REEHR (HiH) - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark HERSEE 50 - - - 50 50 - - - 50
Ms. Chen Xiaorong (Note RBERL (W) - - - - - - - - - -
5 28 2 = 350 110 511 1 14934 15,556
Notes: B 5
a)  Retired on 16 December 2011 a RZZT—F+-_A+HERE
b)  Appointed on 13 May 2010 by R-ZE—ZFRA+-HEZIT
c)  Appointed on 13 May 2010 and resigned on 23 March 2012 ) NRIZE—EFRA+=-HEZFILRZ=
T-—F=-AZ+=-HEMAE
d)  Resigned on 16 July 2010 d RZZ—ZFLA+HEE
e)  Appointed on 9 September 2010 and resigned on 23 March e) RZE—ZTFNANBEZTIR=-Z
2012 —:¢ AZ+=HEfT
f) Redesignated from an independent non-executive director f) RN_E—TF+_A+HEBEEIE
to an executive director on 15 December 2010 BITES WHETERITES
g)  Appointed on 15 June 2012 ) ANZE——FRATHEHEZHE
h)  Appointed on 14 July 2010 h RZIZE-ZFLATHBEEZRE
i) Appointed on 15 December 2010 i) RZZE—ZE+_ATHAEEE

) Resigned on 9 September 2010 RZZE—ZEFNANLEEHET

—
7
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wr & TR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the years
ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

During the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments was paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none (2011: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above.
The emoluments of the remaining five (2011: two) highest
paid individuals during the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2011 were as follows:

17.

18.

S

BE_ZT——FR_F——FR A=+
FEFE BEEFNREARAEREL
BN & 2 22 5k o

T ()

HE_Z——-FR-_FT——FA="
HIEFE AEETBERARRESRES
NEMME EAMARKENALEE
W2 SRENSIE AR A(E -

=REIEEMNT
AEBLERSFMENALRA HE
(ZF——F : ZR)ARAEF FFLZ
FHER EXHE - REBE-_FT——F
RZZ2——FRA=1+HILFE H#
A (ZE——F WA) &5 MER
AL zHMaT

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FET

Salaries, wages and other benefits He IENREMETR 2,271 694
Share-based payments LARS 15 B E 0 By 1 3R - 4,978
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 38 7R 1& Fll 5+ 21 £ 7% 12 9
2,283 5,681
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18.

19.

B

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS  18.

(Continued)

The emoluments of the remaining five (2011: two) highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

& (@)

= A E TR E B

HBAA (ZF——F MA) &= 5
ERIALZH R FUTHRER:

2012 2011
—E——F T4
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEHA EE#E
Emolument bands i &8 =
Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 5 1
HKD5,000,000 to HKD6,000,000 5,000,000/ L&
6,000,000/ 7T - 1

During the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, no
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDENDS 19.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
30 June 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

BE_Z——FR-_Z—FKA=+
ALFE AEEHEADLA RS H M
ERIA L2 ARSI R FIMARE
Bk MARNEBERIES RS AELRE
BiwE -

H& /%\
BE_Z——FRA=THLFELE

IR SRR AR S - B ¥R & R T A R
IREARE (ZT——F &) -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z—

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20. M BB MR

E——FNA=FHILFE

Leasehold Office Furniture Plant and Motor Traffic  Construction
improvements  equipment  and fixtures machinery vehicles  signboards in progress Total
BENELE HOERE  GAREE HEREE AE RBETRE ERIR @zt
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Fitn T Fitn T Fitn Fin Fin Fin
COST [2:8
At 1 July 2010 RZE2-5%+A-A 75 12,834 267 872 3,185 - 559 17,792
Exchange realignment EHAR - 506 3 28 136 132 15 815
Additions NE 620 40 17 - - 11,408 2,629 14,863
Acquired on acquisition of AYENRBARMEA
subsidiaries (Note 39(0) (WE390)) - 447 31 - 993 13,784 1004 16,349
Transfers a5 - 622 - - - 3675 (4,007) -
Disposals HE - - - - (353) - - (353)
At 30 June 2011 RNZE-—F7A=1H 695 14,449 472 895 3,961 28,994 - 49,466
Exchange realignment EH AR - 441 2 9 108 956 - 1,516
Additions hE - 3 47 - - - 1,705 1,765
Acquired on acquisition of ARERBATMEA
subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) (F13£39()) - 38 - - - - - 38
Transfers e - - - - - 1,705 (1,705) -
Reclassified as assets BN RARELEEE
held for sale 75) (229) (190) (328) (543) - - (1,358)
Written off e - 1) - - - (85) - (106)
Disposals fe - (1,066) 82) (676) - - - (1,724)
At 30 June 2012 W=B--£XxB=1A 620 13,622 249 - 3,526 31,570 - 49,587
ACCUMULATED RANERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1July 2010 WZE-Z5+tF-H 61 1,204 199 343 825 - - 2,632
Exchange realignment EXRE - 105 - 3 33 - - 141
Provided for the year FREE 66 3,435 33 53 1,11 993 - 5,691
Eiiminated on disposals HERHR - - - - (227) - - (227)
At 30 June 2011 WZE-—457R=1H 127 4,744 232 399 1,742 993 - 8,237
Exchange realignment EHAR - 279 - 2 60 130 - 471
Provided for the year FhiE 147 2,004 76 114 1,190 6,059 - 9,680
Reclassified as assets BN RARELEEE
held for sale (75) (222 (190) (328) (543) - - (1,358)
Impairment loss recognised ~ FABERHERR
for the year - 6,754 - - 107 - - 6,861
Eliminated on written off HHE AR - (1) - - - (15) - (16)
Eliminated on disposals HERHER - (311) (34) (187) - - - (532)
At 30 June 2012 R-Z--FxA=1H 199 13,337 84 - 2,556 7,167 - 23,343
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2012 RZE-Z£5xA=1+H 421 285 165 - 970 24,403 - 26,244
At 30 June 2011 RZE-—FxA=1A 568 9,705 240 496 2219 28,001 - 41,229
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Notes: B 5 -
(@  The above items of property, plant and equipment, other (@)
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives less their residual
values at the following rate per annum:
Leasehold improvements 25%
Office equipment 25%
Furniture and fixtures 25%
Plant and machinery 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Traffic signboards 20%
(b)  Depreciation charge of approximately HKD7,669,000 (b)

(2011: HKD4,238,000) with respect of office equipment and
traffic signboard has been included in cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
year ended 30 June 2012.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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e & B R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=—F——FNHA=+HIFFE
21. FILM RIGHTS, FILM IN PROGRESS 1. BERE EETRNE
AND FILM ROYALTY DEPOSITS REE S
Film in Film royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
EYME ERFE E¥MERSE @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET FET TET TET
COST A
At 1 July 2010 RoZ-ZFLF—H 116,733 2,302 482 119,517
Additions RE 103 - - 103
Transfers &% 491 (491) - -
At 30 June 2011 RZE——F A=Z+H 117,327 1,811 482 119,620
Additions RE 12 - - 1
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENDEARBENEEE (117,339) (1,811) (482) (119,632)
At 30 June 2012 R-B-Z&£xB=+H - - - -
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Eit##i kA E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2010 W-Z-ZFLF—H 107,002 1,489 482 108,973
Amortisation provided for the year FRHBEEE 2,056 - - 2,056
Impairment loss recognised for the year ~ FRBERZ BEEE 2,207 322 - 2,549
At 30 June 2011 RZE——F A=+H 111,285 1,811 482 113,578
Amortisation provided for the year FREEAE 278 - - 278
Impairment loss recognised for the year ~ FRERZ MEEE 3,949 - - 3,949
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENHBABENEEAE (115,512) (1,811) (482) (117,805
At 30 June 2012 RZZE-—fXA=*H - - - -
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 30 June 2012 R-E-ZExA=1+H - - - -
At 30 June 2011 RZE——F A=+H 6,042 - - 6,042
(@ Amortisation charge of approximately HKD278,000 (@ ERhuiE 2 BB A %278,0007%8

(2011: HKD2,056,000) with respect of film rights has
been included in loss for the year from discontinued
operations in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(b) The carrying amounts of film rights and film (b)
in progress have reduced to their recoverable
amounts through recognition of impairment loss of
approximately HKD3,949,000 (2011: HKD2,549,000)
which has been included in loss for the year
from discontinued operations in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

HEHEEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR

T (==& ——% 2,056,000/ 7T )
TIRERE B ERE R AR IEEE
¥ ZENERE-

BYMERCRYH CEAERE
3B W FR 8 (B B 18 493,949,000/ 7T
(=ZZ——1%:2,549,000/8 7T ) M
BIEREE T REIHE  BRARES
BERGEEEKRERTARILE
EEBZFNER-
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z-F——FNA=+HILFZE

22. GOODWILL 22, mE
HKD’000
FET
COST R
At 1 July 2010 (Note a) N—ZE—ZF+H—H (KFa) 52,845
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note b) F&l Y B Fif B8 A & Fr = 4= (M 5Eb ) 711,430
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 RZE—F X NA=+AHK
—E——FtA—H 764,275
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note c) B U B Hf & A Bl FrEE £ (M sEc) 134,606
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE—Z-HFx<A=+H 898,881
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT i EE
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and RZE—ZEF+H—RB - ZF—F
1 July 2011 (Note a) NA=ZtTER=ZE——F+ A —H (HiFa) 5,895
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRNERRRBEEE 541,458
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE——-FXxA=+H 547,353
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE——XA=+H 351,528
At 30 June 2011 RZE——FNA=+H 758,380
Notes: B
(@ At 1 July 2010, the cost and accumulated impairment (a) MZZT—ZFtH—H" #%52845,000

of approximately HKD52,845,000 and HKD5,895,000
represent a goodwill was arisen from the acquisition of
China Wimetro Communications Company Limited and its
subsidiaries, including China Wimetro Company Limited,
Shenzhen Huanlian Communications Technology Company
Limited and Shenzhen Kunyu Communications Technology
Company Limited (collectively referred to as “China Wimetro
Group”) during the year ended 30 June 2010.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, addition of goodwill
amounted to approximately HKD711,430,000 was arisen
from the Ease Ray Acquisition, The Ease Ray Group
including Pacific Mind Limited, Elegant Capital Company
Limited, City Media Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Dasan Hexian
City Environmental Art Company Limited (Note 39(b)).

For the year ended 30 June 2012, addition of goodwill
amounted to approximately HKD134,606,000 was arisen
from acquisition of entire equity interests of Smart Long and
its subsidiaries, including Cheermay Limited and Guangdong
Wisys Communications Company Limited (Note 39(a)).

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z ==

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVIDING
WIRELESS SERVICE

China Wimetro Group

China Wimetro Group have obtained the license to
operate a national local call package called “Shenzhou
950" which is a value added service provided to China
Mobile subscribers. After 3 years of operations, China
Wimetro Group has gained a sizable market share among
subscribers of mobile telecommunications. However, with
the advanced development of broadband wireless mobile
telecommunication technology and continuous innovation in
Web application technology, China mobile internet industry
begins to grow dramatically, as 3G technology is rapidly
popularised. Moreover, instant message (IM) products
are developed for new smart phones and smart terminal
users, especially the smart phone users, grow explosively.
Besides, an increasing number of innovative companies
emerge and expand with over half of their products
developed for mobile internets, and these products form
a new opening basic network for telecommunication
that provides telecommunication services of high quality,
such as voice, facsimile, image, multi-media services.
Consequently, the China mobile internet has grown from
merely a chatting tool into a comprehensive information
platform that combines functions including communication,
information, entertainment, searching, e-commerce,
collaboration work and business customer service. The
most famous ones include: comprehensive IM tools such
as Tencent QQ and Microsoft MSN; vertical IM tools such
as NetkEase POPO, Sina UC, Baidu Hi, Aliwangwang,
Taobao Wangwang and SNDA-US Quangquan; and multi-
platform and multi-network IM tools such as China Mobile
Feition, eSurfing Live of China Telecom and Skype.
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23.

P

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVIDING
WIRELESS SERVICE (continued)

China Wimetro Group (Continued)

We have been observing such development and evaluated
its business strategies from time to time. Stakeholders
either participate in or withdraw from the market of this
emerging mobile internet industry constantly. The mobile
internet business has become another driver for internet
development next to the broadband technology and
brought development space and new and sustainable
business modes to traditional internet business
development. As its development also provides infinite
possibilities in applications of the mobile network and
promoted extensive development of broadband mobile
network, it has become a strategic focus of mobile
operators in their business development. Thus, traditional
operating mode of information industry is being replaced by
the emerging of the new mode.

With the improvement of network bandwidth in our country,
it is expected that the demand of the users on the business
will change into a business mode that integrates mobile
network and internet in the next couple of years.

As a result, the original operating mode and competitive
structure of the Group seem inopportune in the new
landscape. The market share of our products may fall far
behind mobile internet in the future as is compared to the
past. The original operating mechanism and the manner of
resource allocation are changing.

The license of Shenzhen 950 was expired in December
2011. Given the above reasons and taking into accounts
that if China Wimetro Group renewed its licensed period
of Shenzhen 950 and operated in the existing operation
mode, China Wimetro Group would expect to suffer
operating loss during the license period. Therefore China
Wimetro Group has not renewed the license and became
inactive afterward. Under this circumstance, the directors
of the Company have therefore decided to fully write off the
goodwill arose from the acquisition of China Wimetro Group
during the year ended 30 June 2012.
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVIDING
WIRELESS SERVICE (Continued)

China Wimetro Group (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the recoverable
amount of this cash-generating unit is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. The calculation is based on i)
the profit forecast approved by the management covering
a five-year periods and ii) a discount rate of 18.99% per
annum which reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the credit risk specific to the CGU.

Profit forecast was based on budgeted sales and budgeted
cost of sales during the budgeted period. Budgeted
gross margins were determined based on management’s
expectation for market development and past experience,
and the management believes that the budgeted gross
margins were reasonable. The cash flows beyond that
five-year periods have been extrapolated using 5% for the
year from 2012 to 2013 and 3% per annum growth rate
adopted afterwards, which is in line with the long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the
growth rates and discount rates.
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVIDING
WIRELESS SERVICE (continued)

Smart Long Group

On 1 July 2011, the Group completed the acquisition
of Smart Long Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Smart Long Group”). Smart Long Group
is granted an exclusive right to sell and market the high
temperature superconducting (“‘HTS”) filtering solutions in
Guangdong and Guangxi, the PRC. During the year ended
30 June 2012, the development and profitability of Smart
Long Group was adversely affected due to the following
factors: 1) There was a supply shortage of HTS filters.
2) Smart Long Group’s major customers, i.e. the major
telecommunication operators in the PRC, changed their
procurement policy, called “Z#R1E{L" (General Bidding
Purchasing Policy), due to the change of the relevant
regulations in the PRC. This has delayed the procurement
process of these operators; the order of the first batch
of HTS filters made by them has been extended by one
year to the Company’s next financial year. 3) The fierce
competition among network equipment manufacturers
made the price of base station fall remarkably. The
dominance of the HTS system in the market share of
network optimization market was therefore adversely
affected. 4) Our major customer which was a major
telecommunication operator, has reduced its investment in
network equipments so as to utilize such fund to implement
their marketing strategies, such as various kinds of
subsidies to their subscribers.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERME
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND PROVIDING
WIRELESS SERVICE (Continued)

Smart Long Group (Continued)

All the above factors have adversely affected the profitability
of Smart Long Group. During the year ended 30 June
2012, the recoverable amount of this cash-generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculation. The
calculation is based on i) the profit forecast approved by the
management covering a five-year periods and ii) a discount
rate of 18.04% per annum which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the credit risk
specific to the CGU.

Profit forecast was based on budgeted sales and budgeted
cost of sales during the budgeted period. Budgeted
gross margins were determined based on management’s
expectation for market development and past experience,
and the management believes that the budgeted gross
margins were reasonable. The cash flows beyond that five-
year periods have been extrapolated using (6.92%) for the
year 2013, 67.24% for the year 2014, 30% for the year
2015, 10% for the year 2016 and 3% per annum growth
rate adopted afterwards, which is in line with the long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the
growth rates and discount rates. Based on the business
valuation report issued by Messrs. Asset Appraisal Limited
(“Asset Appraisal”’) dated 27 September 2012 on Smart
Long Group, the Group has recognised an impairment loss
of approximately HKD68,854,000 and HKD10,231,000,
respectively on goodwill and intangible assets arose on
the acquisition of Smart Long Group for the year ended 30
June 2012.
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL ~ 23. @& M BT &ZE 2 R ERH

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

PROVIDING ADVERTISING SERVICE
REGARDING TRAFFIC SIGNBOARD
BUSINESS

Ease Ray Group

The Group operates outdoor advertising business via
the city informational pedestrian traffic signboard system
(the “System”) developed by Shanghai Dasan Hexian
City Environmental Art Company Limited ( /8K = F1
W MBREEMAR A A) (‘Dasan Hexian”), a 51.1%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company. The System
delivers public information, commercial information and
advertisements on LED screens of traffic signboards
through wireless technology for government departments,
public institutions and companies. As recognised by
municipal traffic police departments in the PRC, the System
has been granted the utility model patent certificate and
the Shanghai High & New Technology Transformation
Certificate.

However, because of the European debt crisis that has
led to tightened credit and liquidity problem, Ease Ray
Group encountered difficulties in obtaining financing in
the money market and raising funds from the capital
market. Due to the lack of funding: 1) Dasan Hexian
missed the opportunities to obtain more resources in
cities at an early stage, which has resulted in only four
cities being equipped on a permanent basis for the traffic
signboard media business. Thus, the business is not able
to develop into media of a national scale. Consequently,
it cannot attract large national advertisement customers.
2) Ease Ray Group is unable to carry out large-scale
upgrading and transformation to traffic signboards in cities
with pilot installations. Ease Ray Group is even unable
to complete the total installed capacities as set out in
contracts executed, seriously undermining the advantage
of networking information delivery on traffic signboards
in those cities. The total number of the traffic signboard
media owned by Dasan Hexian is able to satisfy neither
the requirement of installation on roads of the existing four
cities nor customers’ requirement to deliver information
across the cities. 3) The maintenance of traffic signboards
cannot be dealt with in time, causing abnormal information
delivery in a number of traffic signboards. This has negative
impact on the image of municipal facilities and was held
accountable by the relevant authorities. It also had negative
effect on customers’ confidence towards traffic signboard
media, which makes it more difficult to achieve good results
for traffic signboard media.
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REFBRXBETEREZE
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HRKBEEMBARRRHEEEAS 1%
BEZMBAR EBR=MZHTIRE
BHERAR ([ R=F5Z]) RERMT
ERIEATERERS ([ZES] AR
FHNEEETS - i R FURBEGE M
BRI ELEDER NG LM E B3 M - &
ABTEBFIE M AR E S E R E
EXEUNHEEEMES ZRRE
BPESBBRFRERFINRA It
BRESERMUENZEM LEM R
B REBILES -

ot
ot

I}

lid

A AREEEHEREERER RS
EeHE ExCERGREEREMmSE
BRENBEAMSEEESHRE-
HRRZE S )R=MZIEK T AR
BEZHTERNOKE SHAAESR
O {8338 T 1 7 15 5% 4B AR R B0 Ok R 4K e
Moo AUt REBEAERKASZEIED
B EMBERSI2BEEESEANETP
MBI - 2B REE X ETARE
KW EITERE NEEE g -
HREEEEBEARREZARTRE
KBS BREXEIMENTRBER
BARBCEREMNES - LBATA=
MZFEANBERBREBENRE
REMEEAMEMRTER LR EZ R R
BEFPRENESEEEMMER  EHR
BHEETRENERE SHZRIB
EREEALERRMES URBIFAF
B0 T T R R B A R 30 5| AR B AP
FIEYFE B - 731 5 P $HR BB (E 57 &
BENELEKRTMZE EINT A
EREREBAETEENHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #Z ==

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

PROVIDING ADVERTISING SERVICE
REGARDING TRAFFIC SIGNBOARD
BUSINESS (continued)

Ease Ray Group (Continued)

As a result, the Group was unable to develop the business
of Ease Ray Group as originally planned and its profitability
has been adversely impacted. The recoverable amount of
this cash-generating unit is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The calculation based on i) the profit
forecast approved by the management covering a five-year
period and ii) a discount rate of 19.97% (2011: 21.54%)
per annum which reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the credit risk specific to the
CGUs.

Profit forecast was prepared based on budgeted sales
and budgeted cost of sales during the budgeted period.
Budgeted gross margins were determined based on
management’s expectation for future market development
and past experience, and the management believes
that the budgeted gross margins were reasonable and
achievable. The cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using 3% (2011: 15%) per annum
growth rate adopted afterwards, which is in line with the
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the growth rates and discount rates.

Based on the business valuation report issued by
Asset Appraisal dated 27 September 2012 of Ease
Ray Group, the Group has recognised an impairment
loss of approximately HKD425,654,000 (2011: Nil) and
HKD99,085,000 (2011: Nil), respectively on goodwill and
intangible assets arose on the acquisition of Ease Ray
Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

REIFTEES

%%é‘ﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%llﬁ

R

FNA=FHIF

23. ?ﬁ%&/mﬂ/ éf?Z/ME/lJ uI‘
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RUHERARBIEREERZE
EHIR (@)

H&EE (@)

At REBEFIZFTEERE=EE
BT A8 N E i m X B F &
BoRABLEAEMZAIKRESEE
WEREESELIET BT E X
TIiRR)E B E L 2 AT B R T8 -
RiEH19.97% (ZF——F :21.54%)
MR R (ARG E B SR
MEENFEURREELEMNETE
EERB) M-

wATER TR IRTEE I M ETEE &
SHERATEEME -FEEEFNEDIREE
BEHARMSERNBHABELR
Er BEEREENREEEENETIBS
BRAEBR -BAAFH 2R RE1
RAEREERA% (ZE——F:15%)
FIEREHE MZSREEEHETE
MNEHERE-—Z-FRAEBEFTEED
FTERLEERERTBEEXEEH-

EREETEBRRAR-_ZT—Z—F1A
:+t5§§{tﬁﬂ’ﬂ*ﬁﬁ§ﬂm%lﬁ’3¥i‘“ B3
EHE AEEERBE_T——FKX

A=+ Eiﬁfgﬁtuﬁz,ﬁ%ﬂn;ﬂ%lﬁﬁF
EREERERNEERRRBEBEY
425,654,000 T (ZF——F:ZT) K
99,085,000 T (ZE——F &) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A 24,

B

SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 4
August 2010 and the circular dated 8 March 2011, the
Company has entered into a conditional agreement with Mr.
Cheung Sing Tai (the “Smart Long Vendor”) on 2 August
2010 for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Smart Long at a consideration of HKD230,000,000 (the
“Smart Long Acquisition”). The amount of HKD120,000,000
as at 30 June 2011 represents the refundable deposit paid
by the Group to the Smart Long Vendor upon signing a
conditional agreement for the Smart Long Acquisition.

The Smart Long Acquisition was completed on 1 July
2011. Details of the Smart Long Acquisition are disclosed in
Note 39(a).

BB AR ZEN
%86

BEARGAHA-ZZE—ZTF/\AWA
MAMURBEA-—ZT——F=AN\H
R E AARER —Z—ZFN\A-H
MR RAA ([BES I —1HEA
&1 5% > LA {E280,000,0007 7T U B8
B 2HEBITRA ([ERKE]) -
W=—ZT——%FXxA=+H" 120,000,000
BITEREE RN EEZ B BT
AEEZNTEREST ZAIRERSE

BAMEER - —F+tA A%
B 5 B 2 B MR 2 617 LA M 2E30(a)
#EE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ2=F——FNA=+HIFFE

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

25. BIL B E

Contracted
and
Wireless uncontracted
network customers
platform  relationships Total
EHES
| EHEY
BETE ZEFB% wEt
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET FET
(Note a) (Note b)
(ff3Ea) (FiF3ED)
COST B
At 1 July 2010 RZZE—TF+H—H - - -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries [ 45 B P B 2 &1 i BE A
(Note 39(b)) (P 7¥39(0)) - 185,920 185,920
At 30 June 2011 RZE——FA=+H - 185,920 185,920
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries U & F B X &) M BE A
(Note 39(a)) (PH7E39(a) ) - 31,802 31,802
Additions RE 8,115 - 8,115
At 30 June 2012 R-ZZE-—-§XA=+H 8,115 217,722 225,837
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R ## KiRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2010 RZZ—ZFF+H—H - - -
Provided for the year FREE - 3,098 3,098
At 30 June 2011 RZE——F R A=TH - 3,098 3,098
Provided for the year FNEE 135 51,006 51,141
Impairment loss recognised FHNEHRREBE
for the year - 109,316 109,316
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE--§XA=1H 135 163,420 163,555
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2012 RZEBE-ZHXA=1+H 7,980 54,302 62,282
At 30 June 2011 RZFE——%XH=1H - 182,822 182,822

hEHEEEEERAR e ZE—_FFR
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nded 30 June 2012 EZE—F——FNA=+HIFE

For the year e

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The wireless network platform represents the platform
acquired separately from the software house for providing
wireless services to external customers.

The wireless network platform is amortised over its
estimated useful life of five years on a straight-line basis. The
balance has been included in the cash-generating unit of
sale of telecommunication products and providing wireless
service. Particulars of the impairment test have been
disclosed in Note 23.

It represents contracted and uncontracted customers
relationships arising from the acquisition of Ease Ray Group
during the year ended 30 June 2011 (included in the cash-
generating unit of providing advertising service regarding
traffic signboard business) and the Smart Long Group
during the year ended 30 June 2012 (included in the cash-
generating unit of sale of telecommunication products and
providing wireless service).

The fair value of the contracted and uncontracted customers
relationships at the date of acquisition was arrived using the
income approach which was performed by Asset Appraisal.
Under the income approach, the value of an asset reflects
the future cash flows it generates. Asset Appraisal applied
contributory charges to the yearly revenue to represent the
earnings generated by the intangible assets to calculate the
fair value of the intangible assets.

The contracted and uncontracted customers relationships
are amortised over its estimated useful life of four (2011: ten)
years on a straight-line basis. Particulars of the impairment
test have been disclosed in Note 23.

Amortisation charge of approximately HKD135,000
(2011:Nil) with respect of wireless network platform has
been included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the year ended 30 June
2012.

25.

‘B EE (5)

B eE:

(@)
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26. LOAN AND LOAN INTEREST 26. B E R EFH &
RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FAT
Fixed-rate loan receivables & E IR ERE R
Analysed as: BT EEDT:
Current B HA 54,964 5,958
Non-current SEENER - 11,915
54,964 17,873
Fixed-rate loan interest receivables TE M R R W E A B
Analysed as: BT EEDNT:

Current B[ B8 1,385 -
Total HEt 56,349 17,873
Notes: B 5 -

a) At 30 June 2012, included in loan receivables amounting to a) ZC —F-= i f\_ﬁ Ei— \El A /ﬁ
approximately HKDB,148,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000,000) #96,148,0008 7L (& XA K
is unsecured and carried fixed interest at 6.8% per 5\1080’02075)%?@ ”ygﬂ\?ﬁﬁ i
annum (2011:6.8%). The corresponding loan interest 3 Fjﬂé"‘mg% <—$;_§ )
receivable is approximately HKD1,150,000 (equivalent 6.8% JRF B E fE Y ng& E B i’j
to approximately RMB935,000). The loan is due from 1,1 SO;OOOi% 751,(7 1H & R }\%%
an independent third party. During the year ended 30 9_35'002?) "ZE?TJ@”}iﬁE%%
June 2012, repayment of approximately HKD11,915,000 ZEZW\IE\"%:—EZ_@/\H =+
(equivalent to RMB10,000,000) has been received by the :H%¢§;$*@§Wiu '%"711'915'000
Group. Pursuant to the loan agreement entered into with the Ezg (& 3’5_/\& F¢1%z1O,OL)O,O(_JOTL) Z
independent third party on 20 June 2011, the original loan i&ﬂf%jgiﬁéii;_ _f:\i_ﬂ— Elgﬁi
principal was approximately HKD17,873,000 (equivalent to fﬁﬁ%zzﬁﬂlzg’ﬂﬁajﬁ ' ijg
RMB15,000,000). The outstanding balance including interest AR R 1 7'87_3'0007%_72 1 % 1
is approximately HKD7,298,000 (equivalent to approximately ﬁE”ﬂ_ﬁS,OOQ,QOOQL" 32; =%
RMB5,935,000) as at 30 June 2012 would be due on 31 NAZT R HAREEZ R (2R
December 2012. ,%\) ri\{g )z%7,298,000}%7|: ( ] é‘ﬁ/\‘\%}‘] AR

#5,935,0007T) * R ZE—_F+ =
B=+—H2IH-
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

26. LOAN AND LOAN INTEREST
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b)

At 30 June 2012, included in loan receivable amounting
to approximately HKD37,995,000 (equivalent to
RMB30,900,000) is unsecured and carried fixed interest at
4.3% per annum (2011: Nil). The loan interest receivable is
approximately HKD198,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB161,000). The loan is due from an independent third
party. Pursuant to the loan agreement entered into with the
independent third party on 9 April 2012, the original loan
principal was approximately HKD43,037,000 (equivalent
to RMB35,000,000). The outstanding balance including
interest is approximately HKD38,193,000 (equivalent
to RMB31,061,000) at 30 June 2012 would be settled
by three installments of approximately HKD18,642,000
(equivalent to RMB15,161,000), HKD11,612,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,443,000) and HKD7,939,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,457,000) on or before 11 April 2013, 21 June 2013
and 29 June 2013, respectively.

At 30 June 2012, included in loan receivable amounting
to approximately HKD10,821,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,800,000) is guaranteed by a company incorporated
in the PRC and carried fixed interest at 7.3% per annum
(2011: Nil). The loan interest receivable is approximately
HKD37,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB30,000). The
loan is due from an independent third party. Pursuant to the
loan agreement entered into with the independent third party
on 9 May 2012, the original loan principal was approximately
HKD30,741,000 (equivalent to RMB25,000,000) and
would be paid out by several installments. The outstanding
balance including interest is approximately HKD10,858,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,830,000) at 30 June
2012 and would be settled in June 2013.

Included in the loan and loan interest receivables are the
following amounts denominated in currency other than the

20.

EWE R RERF B (&)

PsE: (4&)

b)

R—_EBE——FXA=+
#4937,995,000 7T (&
30,900,0007T ) 2 FE UL & 5% Jh 45 1 -
WIEEFERNRLII% (- B ——4F:
) E - FEUE B F B 49 A198,000
BT (FHE RO ARKE161,0007T) © 5%
BRI R —Z2BIE=Z 2 HE
BER-_ZT——FHNANBEZBEY
BEZHRIMZERBE THRERAK
£ R84 /H43,037,000%8 T (HERAR
#35,000,0007T) e A ZF— ZF X A
TR WMAEEZES(BENE)
%9 /38,193,0008 7T (HHE R AR
31,061,0007) D =ZHi&ZE - =
ET—=ZFUA+—H —E—=FxA
—t+—-BER=-ZZE—=%AZt+hB=%
2 Bl BIME 8 #918,642,000/8 7T (HEE
WA RK15,161,0007T) ~ 11,612,000
B (HE R AR 443,0007T)
7,989,000 L (HHE R AR
6,457,0007T ) ©

WZZE—=—FXA=+H A#
#910,821,0008 ¢ (HE R AR
8,800,0007T ) 2 FEM E 5K Ty i — IR
B A S ) A B R IR R WIREE
FRR73% (ZT——F T)itB &
W & FR B 40 537,000 7T (5 R A
R #30,0007T) - Z BRI ER—ETE
NEZHZRE RER=ZT—=FHA
BHBEZBIE=FEILZERW
= VIR B A £ %847 /530,741,000
7T (FE R ARE25,000,0007T) © #
BEBREZERIOHHAREE-R_T—=F
NAZTR - MEABEZES (BEF
B) %) 510,858,000/ 7T (HHE R LA
R#8,830,0007L) R =T —=F X
B&EE-

Zm
>—.
>
®

RN E R E KA BB TFIE (M
B2 AN EEERNINEE K AND

functional currency of the relevant group entities to which BHEFE)
they related:
2012 2011
—E-——& —T——f
’000 000
SEoT T
RMB ARHE 45,826 15,000
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26. LOAN AND LOAN INTEREST 26. EWERKEF
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

%lJ 7N ( it

i

The maturity profile of these loan and loan interest
receivables, (net of impairment allowance), at the end of
the reporting period is analysed by the remaining periods to
their contracted maturity dates as follow:

R¥EHR EZ%FEH&E R EFHH &
(RHABRBERE) IHBER RAH
,HﬂEIZ%?lJﬁ%,HHBEﬁMZZDT-

J

H—H

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FAT

Within one year R—FR 56,349 5,958
In more than one year but not —F LA ERFUAR

more than two years = 11,915

56,349 17,873

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. B HRWER R

2012 2011

—E—_—F —F——%F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FET

Trade receivables g Z RN 80,139 54,724

Less: Accumulated allowance A RERRFTEE
for doubtful debts (41) -
80,098 54,724

FEFEEREERAT  ZF—ZFEH
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of range from 90
days (2011: 90 days) to its trade customers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

7. B S EWERI (#)

AEBGETHESEPFHOR (ZF
——F:OR)MEER - RBEHRR
BRERZAMMEINZE S BUERR (K
R RER R BUHE) 2RI DT T -

2012 2011

—E——fF —ET——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FHET

Within 30 days 30B R 20,289 30,184
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 20,388 5
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 23,619 -
Over 90 days HBiEo0H 15,802 24,535
80,098 54,724

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HKD15,802,000 (2011: HKD24,535,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered to be recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The ageing of these
receivables is over 90 days (2011: over 90 days).

AEBEESEVERFEHE SR HRED
KR $1E 4 515,802,000 T (=&
——%F 24,535,000/ 7T ) K480 HA FE U AR
O ARG BN HOR B SR R R

THRZEHEBIEEERTEERAN
B BANWAR AR UE - AN 5 B30 M 5 A
EEMTEEAERR ZEFEKIRR
Z R BIBI0E (—ZF — — 4 #8890
H) -
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. B EWRR (@)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BB ERBENE 5 EIRR Z BRER -
impaired:
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F&ET FET
Overdue by: mHE
Over 90 days HBiE0H 15,802 24,535
Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful EZRWER 2 RIERTEEZE):

debts for trade receivables:

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEx FHET
At 1 July RntHA—H - 790
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B - 16
Impairment loss recognised FHNERAREEE
during the year 41 -
Reversal of impairment loss FRREBERD
during the year - (806)
At 30 June RANA=+8 41 -
Included in the Group’s accumulated allowance for doubtful REBMNEFEBIEFREZEAERESR
debts of trade receivables are individually impaired trade SHEEEK AA41,0008T (T ——F:
receivables with an aggregated balances of approximately THEEBIREZE SRR ANAQF
HKD41,000 (2011: Nil) in which the directors of the EEZERA BRZSERRIAREERS
Company consider that the Group is unlikely to recover —F AEEBEWEZEEE - AEH
these debts as they are long outstanding over one WERZEERFEEAERR -
year. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

27. B S EWBR R (&)

B o RBRREE TR (A8 228
AR EEEBNNEEE AN E RS
B):

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

’000 '000

Fx Tt

RMB AR 65,140 28,653

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

28. FART A & L HAB UK
TRIE

2012 2011
—_E—_—F —F—
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET FAT
Prepayments (Note a) TEfT IR (MEa) 58,867 47,156
Deposits Ze 744 797
Other receivables (Note b) H At FEURIE (PiEED) 35,819 50,991
95,430 98,944
Less: accumulated allowance W R REH R
for doubtful debts (1,157) (632)
94,273 98,312
Notes: B 5
@ Included in prepayments is advance payment (@ RZE—=ZF~A=+H8H"

to supplier for purchase of the traffic signboard
amounting to approximately HKD14,812,000 (2011:
HKD17,215,000) as at 30 June 2012.

(ii) Included in prepayments is advance payment to an
independent third party for the project development
and consultancy services of approximately
HKD23,270,000 (2011: HKD29,270,000) as at 30
June 2012.

(iii) Included in prepayments is advance payment to
an independent third party for acted as an agent
of referring investment projects amounting to
approximately HKD19,106,000 (2011: Nil) as at 30
June 2012.

HbEEFBEREREERS
ERERHRERELZBRY
14,812,000 7L (=& — —F:
17,215,000/ 7T ) ©

iy MZZBE—=—FA=+H BN
FERERER A EEHAR
BRABYFZHERZEFY
23,270,000 L (ZFE ——4F :
29,270,000/ 7T ) °

iy MHZZTE—=FA=+H 7B
FBEA—R2BILE=ZH (EA
NB/EEE ZHPMIEL 22
K #719,106,0008 7T (= F ——
FrE)o
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

Included in other receivables is a receivable due from
an independent third party arising from the Smart Long
Acquisition of approximately HKD33,972,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB27,628,000) (2011: Nil) as at 30 June
2011. Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 August 2010, the Company has entered into a
conditional agreement with the Smart Long Vendor on 2
August 2010 (the “Agreement”) for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Smart Long at a consideration
of HKD230,000,000. (Details of Smart Long Acquisition is
disclosed in Note 39(a)).

In accordance to the Agreement, the Smart Long
Vendor has guaranteed to the Company that the audited
consolidated net profit after tax and any extraordinary
items or exceptional items or exceptional items of the
Smart Long Group to be determined under the HKFRSs
for the year ended 31 December 2011 shall not be less
than RMB20,000,000 (equivalents to approximately
HKD24,592,000) (the “Guarantee Profit”). In the event that
the Smart Long Group cannot achieve the Guarantee Profit,
the Smart Long Vendor shall pay the Company in cash of
amount equal to the difference between the audited net
profit and the Guarantee Profit on a dollar to dollar basis.

As the Smart Long Group has incurred a loss of
approximately RMB7,628,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011, the Smart Long Vendor shall pay the
Company of approximately RMB27,628,000 (equivalents to
approximately HKD33,972,000).

Gain on contingent consideration of approximately
HKD33,972,000 (equivalents to approximately
RMB27,628,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year ended
30 June 2012.

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR

CENRIE e M E MR

FIE ()

PisE: (4&)

(®)

RZTE——FA=10  HEibfElx
BEERE PN EEENRER — 2B
B = 2 FIEHI33,972,000/8 7T (=&
——F ) REARNFARE =T —
TFENARBZAMH ARRIER=ZF
—EFENAHEEAEAFL—EE
G (TzimaE])  NIREEERE 2
2E2BITIRA - KB /230,000,0007
TLe (BEEBUEE 2 B R E39()
W) -

BIEZHE SBREHFDMARQRE
R BE2-Z2——F+=ZA=1+—H1t
FE - BREESVBERESENMETE 2
B EBR A A R AT A E B B
BRIBEHRZEEREAEFFEB
R AR #20,000,0007T (FHE R4
24,592,000 ) ([MRERFI]) W8
BAE BRI RERT  BIESAE S
AR S MAR RIS R EE LG
FEFEERENEzEEERE-

HREBEE=Z——F+=-A=+—H
IHFE BHEECEABROARE
7,628,0007T ' BUSAB HZARARN AR
T# AR #27,628,000/8 7T (FEERL
33,972,000 7T ) °

AR B 2 Uk 25 4933,972,0007% 7T (17
BROARE27,628,0007T) B REE
TE-—EXNAZTALFEZHAR
AU s = TR
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 28.

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful debts
for prepayments, deposits and other receivables:

TERIE e RHAERK
FIE ()

BIENRIE e R EMEKREN R
RARBREED:

2012 2011
—E—_F —_F—

HKD’000 HKD’000

FTET FHET

At 1 July RntH—H 632 164

Exchange realignment PE % 26 13
Impairment losses recognised FAERRREERE

during the year 1,607 622

Reversal of impairment losses FHREBERZD

during the year - (167)

Reclassified as assets held for sale BN BERBIELEEE (1,108) -

At 30 June RARA=+H 1,157 632

Included in the accumulated allowance for doubtful debts
are individually impaired receivables with and aggregated
balances of HKD1,157,000 (2011: HKD632,000) in which
the directors of the Company consider that the Group is
unlikely to recover these debts as they are long outstanding
over one year. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are the following amounts denominated in a currency other

RERRABER S BER1/51,157,000
BT (ZF——% 632,000/ 7T ) 2 &5
HMEZBKERSR NABESERA AR
ZEEBRMREER —F AKEE
EM B % F B N ERE Y E R F A
PRIT A RS -

BNFR He REMEKRARRET
SIBAE (AR HENEEEENIE

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities to BRI EBEE) -
which they relate:
2012 2011
—R-—-F —
’000 000
T FIT
RMB ARHE 41,515 3,293
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INVENTORIES

29.

FE

2012
—_E—_—F

2011
—F——F
HKD’000 HKD'000

FEx TET

SLRK R
o REHRE

Finished goods
Less: Accumulated Impairment

800 -
(800) -

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s inventories
and determined that all inventories were impaired due
to decrease in demand. Accordingly, impairment loss of
approximately HKD800,000 has been recognised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
balance with banks.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.001% to 0.36% (2011: 0.001% to 0.36%) per annum at
30 June 2012.

Investment in money market instruments represent short
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
carried interest rate at 0.01% (2011: 0.01%) per annum.

Approximately HKD6,982,000 as at 30 June 2012 (2011:
HKD10,235,000) are denominated in RMB and deposited
with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies; however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Company is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.

HEIFTEEREARAR o

30.

RBE-_ZT——F~A=1tHLEE"
ARARESHAEENTFEETR
WEEFBFEBRRE SR MR
B - E I - AR R B # 78 4£9800,0007% 7T
ZREEE-

RBeMREFED
R RASSENOEFERSRET

+
r%l:l 7R ©

R-ZZE——FXA=1+0 $H£17&£81%
5 FE M ENF0.001%%0.36% (==
——%:0.001%%0.36% )5t & °

REEMSTEZREEN =@A sk
BIHAM R EAE R L FFR0.01% (=
= ——4F:0.01% )5t 8-

B

—ZT——FXA=+H"  #6,982,000
B (ZF——% 110,285,000/ 7T ) LA
AREEE WHEAFBIIRIT AR
TMEEBREBAHME A BIEHR
B P b ) SN B R G0 R 45 B - B TE
NETERTE ARAREFEBBEERE
ITHMNEEBHRITBARB LR ABEM

TE-ZEFR
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31. ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED 3. BN BRBEHEZEESR
WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD i ﬁ%/ﬁ (e
FOR SALE
As details disclosed in Note 15, the Disposal is still in BANMI 1P R M HE EHE E AR
progress up to the date of this report. HEETETHR -
The assets and liabilities attributable to the businesses of Getbetterfe [E K BRSEE ~ ¥ 75 (FBHE
Getbetter Group and B&S Group, which are expected to RTtZEAREE) BhzEERABRED
be sold within twelve months, have been classified as a PEABFFLHEZLEESE WA KR
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in RAEMBRARRNEFZE -
the consolidated statement of financial position accordingly.
The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as RZZE—ZFR"A=1+H BERGZEH
held for sale at 30 June 2012, which have been presented BRRERNEBEY 2 DB AFELE
separately in the consolidated statement of financial ZEERBEZEZENMT
positions, are as follows:
2012
—E—_—F
HKD’000
FExT
Film rights, film in progress and BYRE ERHETNETRIERS
film royalty deposits 1,827
Trade receivables B 5 IR K 5
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE1 Z/ 18 ~ #2 & I H b JiE UGB 20,664
Cash and cash equivalents ReEFBELFEY 520
23,016
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEE (7,142)
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHEZEE 15,874
Trade payables EIREMNER 71
Other payables and accruals H th B A SR IE K ERT RUE 2,420
Deposits received Blize 5,383
Liabilities associated with assets HOBEABELHECEERBAZAR
classified as held for sale 7,874

’ Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012



————

e e ———

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE MR EMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L ——FNA=+HIFFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. B S ERBER
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Trade payables B S ETIRN 7,854 37,497

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

RBEMRREZAHN2INE S EN

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the BRRHBRE DT T
reporting period:

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FTHERT FAT
Within 30 days 30H A - 13,239
31 to 60 days 31£260H - 42
61 to 90 days 61%290H - -
Over 90 days H#BE0H 7,854 24,216
7,854 37,497

BEEMWTFHEREHRR/ROA (=T
——%F:90R) - ANEEE HE M B REE
BEBEK BEAREERNRANESHA
e R ©

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
90 days (2011: 90 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

FEFEEREERAT  ZF—ZF 5 H
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32.

33.

TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in the trade payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

32. B S ERBRR (@)

B 5 f 1 B 58 45 T8I 508 (LA 822 48
B A o 151 B B8 A0 DD A KO LA S e T M 5
&)

2012 2011
—E-_F —FE——%F

’000 '000

Fx Tt

RMB AREE 6,387 13,327

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

33. ELfth & A SR K R RTRR

2012 2011

- —ET——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FTEx FAET

Other payables H BT R 19,009 46,237
Accruals FEET IR 2,693 2,479
21,702 48,716

Included in other payables are advances from independent
third parties of approximately HKD7,223,000 (2011:
approximately HKD10,198,000) with interest-free rate and
expected to be realised within twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.

Hip IR B IR B E =7 IR A0
BB RA7,223,0008 T (=2 ——45:
#110,198,000/8 7T ) TEAH MR & HA K2
T ZEAATIAZBRNER-
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34. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

34. B SAKAE

PAYABLE
2012 2011
= —F—F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEx FHEIT
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
Contingent consideration payable JET s ARE - 220,500

As stated in Note 39(b), the Group has completed
the Ease Ray Acquisition at a total consideration of
HKD860,000,000 on 29 April 2011. Pursuant to the Ease
Ray Agreement, the consideration should be settled by
cash of HKD230,000,000, and issuance and allotment
of i) 3,900,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
HKDO0.145 each and i) a maximum of 210,000,000 new
shares (after the share consolidation effective from 30 June
2011), subject to the downward adjustment, to be issued
by the Company to the Ease Ray Vendor.

The amount of approximately HKD220,500,000
represented the fair value of the Ease Ray Second Batch
Consideration Shares at the date of acquisition on 29 April
2011 which was calculated by Asset Appraisal.

On 10 May 2012, 55,350,793 new shares of the Company
were issued as Ease Ray Second Batch Consideration
Shares of the Ease Ray Acquisition. The Ease Ray Second
Batch Consideration Shares were credited as fully paid
upon the finalisation of the audited resulted of the Ease
Ray Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 at the
published price of the shares of the Company at HKDO.67
per share as of 10 May 2012. Hence, a gain on settlement
of contingent consideration payable of approximately
HKD183,415,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year ended
30 June 2012. Details of the Ease Ray Acquisition are
disclosed in Note 39(b).

BN 390 FT il AEBE R ZF
——FWOAZTNABEXE T WE -
# {8 £860,000,0008 T IRIEE =
1% © 8 B8 (X (2 78 LA IR £230,000,000
B RNVESR0.1458 w7 R I
#3,900,000,0000% 7~ 2 A7) & i@ iz M)
ARABRABERERFETARERS
210,000,0008% (7] F[a) T 38 28 ) %7 A% 7
(RBEHEHE—_E—F X A=+04%
Wik ) T Ao

FRIE#)220,500,000/8 LI H 5v. 8 —#11%
BROVNKBAR(BI—T——FWA
“tAB)ZAFE BEEMEERME

s
BEH-

R-E——FRA+B ARQRET
55,350,793 7 - EAEWE 2 H
SE_HRERD REEEREEEZE
T —F+-AZ+-ALEEZL
EREEY B8 _HRERD THRA
AFRPR—_E——FAA+BEZAH
BIRZ0.67E T AR BB - ALt -
W T S ARAE 2 3 49188,415,000
BTERBE-_T——F~~A=+HL
FEZEAZANRERABR - BT
o U EE 2 S IR P M FE39(0) K BR ©

HEHEEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On 2 June 2011, pursuant to the subscription agreement
entered into by the Company and Standard Bank Plc dated
24 May 2011 (the “Subscription Agreement”), the Company
issued zero coupon convertible notes (the “Convertible
Notes”) for the general working capital of the Group. The
details of the convertibles notes are stated as below:

Date of issue 2 June 2011

Aggregate principal HKD25,000,000
amount

Denomination in HKD1,000
multiple of

Interest rate Nil

Maturity date 2 June 2012

Minimum conversion
price (Note)
Conversion price Higher of (a) 92% of the closing
(Note) price of the ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) on
the immediately preceding day on
which dealings in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange took place
and (b) the minimum conversion
price

HKDO.78 (Note)

Note:

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the original minimum
conversion price was HKDO0.078 and a maximum number of
320,512,820 conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion right in full. Following the completion of
the share consolidation on 30 June 2011 (Note 36(b)), the adjusted
minimum conversion price per shares after completion of the share
consolidation is HKDO.78 and the number of shares to be issued
based on the adjusted minimum conversion price is 32,051,282.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFHmERME

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —ZF NA=+HIFFE

35. B Al AR R IR

RZZE——FXAZH REARQF
EiStandard Bank Plci* —ZE——%FH
AZ+HAFZzREWHZE ([RE WD
) ARTETEEARKRER (7]
BRER]) AALEREE—REE
Bd o 2EMREBENFBEENAT

EITEH —E——FAZH
N k] 25,000,0007% 7T,

HE 1,000/ 7L Z 5 #

| & =

R ERH —E——FXA-H
RIEBAE  0.7887T (MaE)
(FFE)

MR E THSEZEEHE (@4

(HF&E) NRIEBEIE ([RGB
S5 A — A AR D FA B 22
IRz HBHKMEZ
92% : N (o)xIKIRR(E

P &L :

BEREHE  SYHORERRKRER0.078E
TC MR EEERITER B2 EKk
#77320,512,8200% B IR f% 17 - IARR 15 & HF R
—ET——FXA=ZF+ARK%E (H5E36(0))
REHEHEREERRG 2 EAERER
IREA0.788 T IR HE SRR ERTT
32,051,282f% f% 15 °
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

(Continued)

(A)

(B)

(€)

CONVERSION PERIOD

Subject to and upon compliance with the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Notes as set out in the
note instrument, the holders of the Convertible Notes
(the “Noteholders”) shall have the rights at any time
and from any time, following the date of issue of the
Convertible Notes, to convert the whole or any part
of the outstanding principal amount into new ordinary
shares in the Company only. The shares to be issued
and allotted upon conversion shall rank pari passu
in all respect among themselves and with all other
ordinary shares in issue by the Company on the
date of such allotment and issue. If the Convertible
Notes have not been converted on maturity date
or the specified event stated at the Subscription
Agreement occurred during the conversion period,
the Convertible Notes shall be redeemed by the
Company at an amount of HKD27,000,000, which
representing 108% of the principal amount.

GUARANTEE

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee, the
Subscriber and the Noteholders may have immediate
recourse to the guarantor, being an executive director,
upon the Company failing to discharge any of its
obligations under to the note instrument, and may
proceed to enforce their rights against the guarantor
without having first proceeded against or enforced
against the Company.

ISSUE OF REPLACEMENT NOTES

In the event that the conversion price falls below
the minimum conversion price and a Noteholder
exercises its right to redeem its outstanding
Convertible Notes, the Company may issue
replacement notes in respect of those Convertible
Notes to be redeemed if it has sufficient remaining
general mandate of a specific mandate to issue those
notes at that time.

HEIFTEEREARAR o

=t

e & B R R M R

-

35. JENT AT MAR R ()

(A)

(B)

(€)

——EER

R A

R R EFEIE SR A A
BRBB 2GR GG2IERT
RO EIR 1T H HE - TR
EBRIBEAEREBEEADEAE
RERER R N i 2 B Sk R 2B 1D 2
REEASHEERARNRNR 2L
R RNRE K TEITREEE 2
& £ 182 1b Be B AN 2 B A 52 Bie B I 3%
THEIER BT 2 FA Bt @R
ZHEHZEERSHAL - i B
SERNBIH B AR R ek i 88 Y
MBEEREBREASH 2 HFESH
ARREEKEARARRASE L
108% - 27,000,000/ L& ] -

EfR

RIBRERIG HANRQBEEETT
HERBBEXERT ZEMEE R
BIREBERBATHERA (B
—MHITES)RRBIKERE:
WA BEHERANTRE ZE
A MERETEFARFREA
REITHER] -

RTERERE

FERBREREERNRERRERER
ERE ATTEE AR O A 5 RTT
FEABMBEREZERT - HER T —
RIS E R RN B R 1T
ZERE  AARRRAREERT
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

(Continued)

e

(D) STATUS AND TRANSFERABILITY

(E)

The Convertible Notes constitute general and
unsecured obligations of the Company and will rank
equally among themselves and at least pari passu
and rateably without preference (with the exception
of obligations accorded preference by mandatory
provisions of applicable law) equally with all other
present and future unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Company.

The Convertible Notes are not transferable.

VALUATION OF LIABILITY
COMPONENT AND CONVERSION
OPTION DERIVATIVE

At the issued date of 2 June 2011, at the end of the
reporting period of 30 June 2011 and at the date
of early redemption on 2 December 2012, the fair
value of the Convertible Notes was performed by
Asset Appraisal. The Convertible Notes contain two
components, liability component and conversion
option derivative. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 12.28% on 2 June 2011,
13.12% on 30 June 2011 and 14.06% on 2
December 2011, respectively. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

(Continued)

35. JENT AT MAR R ()

The movements of the liability component and conversion
option derivative of the Convertible Notes during the year
are set out below:

FAAMEEENBERD MR RE
ITETAMZESHFIMT

Conversion
Liability option
component derivative Total
BERE
=R PTHEIA &&t
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET FHET
Issue of convertible notes R-ZT——FA=H
on 2 June 2011 HITAIRRER 24,047 953 25,000
Transaction costs on BETUBRKRER
convertible notes issued RS (721) (29) (750)
Effective interest charged FTUER 2 B FI B 222 - 202
Changes in fair value of AMEREERE s AFE
convertible notes #8) 538 (209) 329
At 30 June 2011 R-B——F
AA=+H 24,086 715 24,801
Effective interest charged BT 4B 2 B R FI B 1,305 - 1,305
Changes in fair value of MR RE 2 A E
convertible notes #H) (134) (568) (702)
Loss on early redemption of RRERATIRRER 2
convertible notes B8 1,596 - 1,596
Redemption of convertible notes* & [0] A] #A i% Z & (26,853) (147) (27,000)
At 30 June 2012 R-EB—ZF
~B=1H - - -
* The convertible notes with a principal amount of * K% 58 525,000,000/ T 2 7] # j%

HKD25,000,000 was early redeemed on 2 December 2011
at an amount of HKD27,000,000, representing 108% of the
principal amount. After the redemption, no other convertible
notes remain outstanding.

ZEER-_E——F+_A=-HE
27,000,000 T (FEHER AL ED
108% ) iR R HE D - BB 1% - B E AT
H o R R RBEITIESN -

hEHEEEEERAR e ZE—_FFR
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35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

E——FNA=FHILFE

35. JENT AT MAR R ()

(Continued)

Since the conversion price for the Convertible Notes
is subject to change, the conversion will not result in
settlement by the exchange of a fixed number of equity
instruments. Therefore, upon application of HKAS 32 and
HKAS 39, it was determined that the Convertible Notes
do not contain any equity component and the entire
Convertible Notes were designated as “financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss” which requires that
Convertible Notes to be carried at fair value at the end
of the reporting period and the changes in fair values are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The inputs used in calculating the fair value of the
Convertible Notes under the Monte Carlo Simulation model
are as follows:

HRABREEEBIRER] TES &
BTEEHANETERE 2RATEME
REE R REMRBBEHERIES2
S BB ERTERIEINRIE  AARE
EABEEEI TS EMEREN
memrekREcEER KEAK
BRFEARZEBEBE] AT A8
ERERBERREIFEINER MAF

BEPHURGEEEEBERER -

RESMREEAETRERREZA
FERAERNEABERNT

2 December 30 June 2 June
2011 2011 2011
—E-—-fF —E——fF —E-—-fF
+=H=H AA=tH AHAZ=H

Adjusted Adjusted

after share after share

consolidation  consolidation

Feg vy gRH

AOtAEE  AhAEE
Share price BB HKDO.317t  HKD0.48/% 7T HKD0.083/ 1T
Minimum conversion price RIEBRRE HKDO.78/8 7T  HKDO.78%&7L HKD0.078/8 7T
Contractual life BHFH 1 yearF 1 yearfF 1 yearF
Risk-free rate R B Y 0.17% 0.13% 0.20%
Expected dividend yield BHIMR B & N/A i F N/AZ i A N/AZ i
Volatility IR 94.36% 69.61% 53.16%

Volatility was reference to the weekly volatility from
Bloomberg and risk-free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Note rate.

KBTS EZZIBERBER ZBRMIEE
e MERRMNESEBINEERSRR

ES
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B AN
Par value Number of
per share shares Amount
EREE R E A X
HKD HKD’000
BT FAET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 July 2010 RZE-ZEF+H—H 0.01  40,000,000,000 400,000
Share consolidation (Note b) Bin & 6t (KfisEb) N/AT#ER  (36,000,000,000) -
At 30 June 2011, 1 July 2011 and RZZ—F R A=1H"
30 June 2012 —E——%tA-Bk
—ZT-—-FXA=tH 0.1 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE:
At 1 July 2010 R-Z—ZF+H—H 0.01  15,428,200,000 154,282
Issue of shares in relation to the E W EETRGD
Ease Ray Acquisition (Note a) (Mizta) 0.01  3,900,000,000 39,000
Share consolidation (Note b) B’in & 6t (KTsEb) NATRER  (17,395,380,000) -
F:i——iﬁﬂz+a
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 —E——F+H—H 0.1 1,932,820,000 193,282
Issue shares in relation to the A Eﬁ W TR R
Smart Long Acquisition (Note c) (MizEe) 0.1 68,750,000 6,875
Placing of shares (Note d) FeE ik (MsEd) 0.1 270,000,000 27,000
Issue shares in relation to the MERWEETRG
Ease Ray Acquisition (Note a) (fizEa) 0.1 55,350,793 5,535
At 30 June 2012 R-Z——&ExA=+0 0.1 2,326,920,793 232,692

HEHEERBEARAR « 28
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nded 30 June 2012 EZE—F——FNA=+HIFE

For the year e

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated
14 June 2010, 25 March 2011 and 29 April 2011 and
the circular of the Company dated 8 March 2011, the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Ease Ray
was completed on 29 April 2011. According to the sale
and purchase agreement dated 3 June 2010 and the
Company’s announcement dated 5 May 2011, the first
batch consideration shares of 3,900,000,000 ordinary
shares of par value of HKDO.10 each have been issued
by the Company to the Ease Ray Vendor and parties
nominated by the Ease Ray Vendor at HKDO0.105 each
which represent the published price of the shares of the
Company on 5 May 2011.

On 10 May 2012, the Second Batch Consideration Shares
of 55,350,793 ordinary shares in relation to Ease Ray
Acquisition have been issued by the Company at the
published price of the shares of the Company of HKDO.67
each.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 29
June 2011, a share consolidation (“Share Consolidation”)
was duly passed in which every ten existing issued and
unissued ordinary shares of par value of HKD0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company be consolidated into one
ordinary share of par value of HKDO0.10 each with effective
from 30 June 2011.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 4
August 2010, 31 December 2010, 29 April 2011 and 30
June 2011 and the circular of the Company dated 8 March
2011, the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Smart Long was completed on 1 July 2011. On 7 July
2011, 68,750,000 ordinary shares of par value of HKDO.10
each were issued as consideration shares at the published
price of the shares of the Company of par value of HKD0.55
each.

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into with
Kingston Securities Limited dated 22 November 2011, the
Company placed out 270,000,000 new ordinary shares
of par value of HKDO0.10 each the Company at a price
of HKDO0.30 per share to independent third parties. Net
proceeds from such issue amounted to approximately
HKD79,780,000 (after deducting the placement expenses of
approximately HKD1,220,000), out of which approximately
HKD27,000,000 and HKD52,780,000 were recorded in
share capital and share premium respectively. The placing
has been completed on 30 November 2011.

36. IR AN (4)

B eE:
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors (including
independent non-executive directors), other employees of
the Group, and suppliers of goods or services to the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 22 July 2002 and expired
on 21 July 2012.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12 month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HKD5 million, within any 12 month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Gontinued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HKD1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s share for
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholder’s meeting.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share option in issue under the Scheme during the year:

e & B R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L ——FNA=+HIFFE

37. TS (@)

G0 R D ER SR B 1T 2 R
HERBR T

30 June 2012 —E-—HXA=1+H
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Lapsed
Name of category Date of price per At 1 July during At 30 June
of participant grant Exercise period share 2011 theyear  Reallocated 2012
RZB-—-F RZB-ZF
SREERER Rt A8 figid: BRITERE tAB-B  RERAN EFSE A~A=TH
(Note b) (Note c)
(PizEp) (Fizre)
Directors
gz
Mr. Hu Yangjun 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
HEELE —E——F Iy A=K
mANA ZTZ-FWAtA
Mr. Zhang Fan 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - -
RPLE —E——F Iy A=K
mANA ZTZ-FWAtA
Mr. Zhou Zhibin 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 15,000,000 - (15,000,000) -
AEREE —E——F Iy A=K
mANA ZTZ-FWAtA
Subtotal 45,000,000 (15,000,000  (15,000,000) 15,000,000
et
Employees and others
EEREM
In aggregate 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 70,500,000 (500,000) 15,000,000 85,000,000
it % ZT-—F@EANAE
mANR “Z--5NA+H
Total 115,500,000  (15,500,000) - 100,000,000
@t
Weighted average
exercise price (HKD) 1.07 1.07
METHITERE (Br)

FENEEEMARAT e —E——55H -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 EZ =L —=F NA=+HIFFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Gontinued)

37. B ERTE (@)

30 June 2011 —E——%FXA=1H
Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise Granted  Adjustment
Name of category Date of price At 1 July during for Share At 30 June
of participant grant Exercise period per share 2010 the year Consolidation 2011
RZB-ZF RZB-—-F
SREERER Rt A Eaki 2 SRTHEE tA-B REARE RAAHHEE  KAZTH
(Note a) (Note a)
(Bizta) (Fizra)
Directors
£z
Mr. Hu Yangjun 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 - 150,000,000  (135,000,000) 15,000,000
—T——F “Z——4PNANBE
HEELE mANE —Z--FWAtA
Mr. Zhang Fan 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 - 150,000,000  (135,000,000) 15,000,000
—T——F “Z——45PNANBE
RPLE mANR —Z--¥WAtA
Mr. Zhou Zhibin 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 - 150,000,000  (135,000,000) 15,000,000
—T——F —Z——5PNANBE
AEREE mANE —Z--FmAtA
Subtotal - 450,000,000 (405,000,000 45,000,000
Nt
Employees and others
EEREM
In aggregate 8/4/2011 8/4/2011 - 7/4/2021 1.07 - 705,000,000 (634,500,000) 70,500,000
—2——F —Z——45PNANRE
it mANR —Z--FPRA+LH
Total - 1,155,000,000 (1,039,500,000) 115,500,000
@t
Weighted average
exercise price (HKD) 1.07 1.07
METHITEE (Br)
Notes: B 5 -

(a) Following the completion of the Share Consolidation on 30
June 2011, the number of the outstanding share options
was adjusted from 1,155,000,000 options to 115,500,000
options and the exercise price of the options was adjusted
from HKDO0.107 to HKD1.07.

(b)  Mr. Zhang Fan resigned on 23 March 2012 and his options
had been lapsed after his resignation.

(c) Mr. Zhou Zhibin retired on 16 December 2011 and his
options had been reallocated to “employees” after his
retirement as he is still a director of one of the subsidiaries of
the Company.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair values of those share options granted on 8 April
2011 were calculated by Asset Appraisal using the Binomial
model. The key inputs into the model were as follows:

8 April 2011
Weighted average share price (Note) HKD1.00
Exercise price (Note) HKD1.07
Expected volatility 87.03%
Expected life 10 years
Risk-free rate 2.792%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Employee exit rate 0%
Exercise multiple 1.5

Note: The weighted average share price and exercise price were
adjusted after the Share Consolidation on 30 June 2011.

Expected volatility was reference to Bloomberg calculated
from the weighted average historical volatility of weekly
return of share price of comparable companies and the
Company. Risk-free rate represents the yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms to
maturity as at the share options granted on 8 April 2011.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HKD38,331,000 during the year ended 30 June 2011 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

No share option was exercised for both years ended 30
June 2012 and 2011.

7. B ERTE (@)
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38. DEFERRED TAXATION 38. BRI IR
Detail of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and FACHRECHIBEEERAZHFE
movements thereon during the year is as follow: W
Intangible
assets
BEEE
HKD’000
FAET
At 1 July 2010 R-_ZE-—ZFLH—H -
Acquisition of Ease Ray Group Wi E =& E (K39 (o)
(Note 39 (b)) 46,480
Credited to consolidated statement of ARG EEREE
comprehensive income (775)
At 30 June 2011 RZE——FA=+H 45,705
Acquisition of Smart Long Group Wi B A E (FI5E39 (a))
(Note 39 (a)) 7,951
Credited to consolidated statement of FFAGREEEREE
comprehensive income (43,884)
At 30 June 2012 R=-B-—=-HXA=+H 9,772
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RBERR AEEHNRGARIES
tax losses of approximately HKD31,869,000 (2011: 18 #731,869,000 L (=& — —F:
HKD17,881,000) available for offset against future profits. 17,881,000 7T ) AJ FA A4 8 2R 2R s 7
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the B A AR 2R S R 7 B DA TR - 0 A o A
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may THHIEBEEREERIBEE -FIEA
be carried forward indefinitely. BB Al ERR A A o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RS HAPR - R E A AT HUR E R 258 40
deductible temporary differences of approximately nil ABET(ZE——F:2,009,000/87T) °
(2011: HKD2,009,000). No deferred tax asset has been FR A7 A B8 78 A H0 Rk B I 2 RE ) R 4R 8
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary FE R B )+ A A Bh 5% 5 AT H0ORLE B
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will EHERECHREEE-

be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30

JUNE 2012
Smart Long Limited

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 4 August 2010, the Company has entered into
a conditional agreement with the Smart Long Vendor
on 2 August 2010 for the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Smart Long at a consideration
of HKD230,000,000. The Smart Long Acquisition was
completed on 1 July 2011.

The consideration of the Smart Long Acquisition
will be satisfied () as to HKD120,000,000 payables
in cash as a refundable deposit upon signing
of Smart Long Acquisition agreement, (i) as to
HKD110,000,000 by way of the allotment and issue
of 68,750,000 consideration shares (adjusted after
the share consolidation on 30 June 2011) by the
Company to the Smart Long Vendor or his nominees
(except for connected person of the Company).

In accordance to the Agreement, the Smart Long
Vendor has guaranteed to the Company that the
audited consolidated net profit after tax and any
extraordinary items or exceptional items of the Smart
Long Group to be determined under the HKFRSs for
the year ended 31 December 2011 shall not be less
than RMB20,000,000 (equivalents to approximately
HKD22,800,000) the “Guarantee Profit”. In the
event that the Smart Long Group cannot achieve
the Guarantee Profit, the Smart Long Vendor shall
pay the Company in cash of amount equal to the
difference between the audited net profit and the
expected profit on a dollar to dollar basis. Based
on the audited consolidated financial statements of
Smart Long Group for the year ended 31 December
2011, Smart Long Group has failed to meet the
Guarantee Profit, therefore the Smart Long Vendor
was obliged to refund approximately HKD33,972,000
(equivalent to RMB27,628,000) to the Company.
The balance has been included in the “prepayments,
deposits and other receivables” of the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012.

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

e

(Continued)

(A) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30

JUNE 2012 (Continued)
Smart Long Limited (Continued)

The above arrangement constitutes a contingent
consideration. The Group shall classify a right to
return of previously transferred consideration as an
asset if specified conditions are met. No asset from
the above arrangement has been recognised at the
Smart Long Acquisition Date because in the opinion
of directors, after reviewing the business plan of
Smart Long Group, the estimated net profit after
tax of the Smart Long Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 will meet the Guarantee Amount,
and the Smart Long Vendor is not obligated to
compensate the Group any shortfall in the Smart
Long Profit Guarantee. However, as per the audited
financial statements of Smart Long Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011, Smart Long Group
incurred a loss of approximately RMB7,628,000.
The Smart Long Vendor shall pay the Company
of approximately RMB27,628,000 (equivalents to
approximately HKD33,972,000). The balance has
been included in other receivable as at 30 June 2012.

As Smart Long Group is granted an exclusive
right to sell and market the high temperature
superconducting (“HTS”) filtering solutions
in Guangdong and Guangx, the Smart Long
Acquisition would enhance the Group’s market
shares and business development in the sales of
telecommunication products and providing wireless
services in the PRC.
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WHEME A~ F] ()
(Continued)
(A) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30 A) BE-—FE——-FKA=1
JUNE 2012 (Continued) BIiIEFE (®
Smart Long Limited (Continued) EAERLAE (&)
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that RAREERE HWKBERARKNE
the acquiree’s assets and liabilities approximate their ERBEEEANTERE -REH
fair values. The net assets acquired from the Smart IR TR EEFEARESE
Long Acquisition and the goodwill arising are as BB
follows:
Pre-
acquisition
carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Fair value
WEEABREE ATERAER AFE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
T T FHT
Net assets acquired ki & = FE
Property, plant and L ER S
equipment (Note 20) (HF5E20) 38 - 38
Intangible assets (Note 25)  #EF & E (H{5E25) - 31,802 31,802
Trade and other receivables & 5 & W BR 3 &
H A e Y R I8 7,257 - 7,257
Inventories 5E 800 - 800
Cash and cash equivalents R&RKIEEEEY 13 - 13
Trade and other payables B RMNERR
H B 5108 (8,754) - (8,754)
Deferred taxation (Note 38)  #EZEFIE (Hf:E38) - (7,951) (7,951)
23,205
Goodwill (Note 22) R (M322) 134,606
Adjusted consideration KRAERE 157,811

hEHEEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

e

(Continued)

(A) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30

39. WEBHKTEB A B (@)

i

A) BE=-ZE——FK<A=+

JUNE 2012 (Continued) HIEFE (@)
Smart Long Limited (Continued) HBHRAERLA (&)
Fair value
»FE
HKD’000
FET
Consideration satisfied by: RENUTHFRAZR:
Deposit paid for the acquisition IEHETRe (KE24)
(Note 24) 120,000
Consideration shares RERHD 37,811
157,811
Net cash flow arising on acquisition: WEEELMIR S REFE:
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE_ZT——FA=-1+HLFE
- Bank balances and cash acquired  —Fr IR TT4E R RIRE 13
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE_ZT——FA=1+HLFE
— Deposit paid for the acquisition —WEHNBENZS (120,000)
(119,987)

Including in the loss for the year is profit of
approximately HKD3,638,000 attributable to Smart
Long Group. Turnover for the year of approximately
HKD7,132,000 is attributable to Smart Long Group.
The acquisition of Smart Long Group has been
effective at 1 July 2011.
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WEERT B~ F] ()

(Continued)

(B) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30 B) BE=—FE——FXK<A=*
JUNE 2011 AIEEFEE
Ease Ray "5
Pursuant to the announcement of the Company REARBBHA-_ZT—ZTF,NA
dated 14 June 2010 and the circular dated 8 March THENAGRBRAE=E——F
2011, the Company has entered into a conditional =“ANBHBH RARRIER_E
agreement with the Ease Ray Vendor on 3 June 2010 —ZEFANAZHHEERSEAFIVE
for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of e % - LAFK{E1,100,000,0007%
Ease Ray at a consideration of HKD1,100,000,000, T (ARERZEGERE TRAE) K
subject to downward adjustment according to the BER2E2HBE BT

terms of the agreement.

The consideration of the Ease Ray Acquisition will be BERBBEARERUTI AT :
satisfied (i) as to HKD230,000,000 payables in cash (/230,000,000 7T #% LA IR & A %
as a refundable deposit upon signing of Ease Ray EERWEREEIN EAAR
Acquisition agreement, (i) as to HKD870,000,000 [B3%% : (ii)870,000,000/8 7L AR
by way of the allotment and issue of 6,000,000,000 AIA R B RRER7H0.145/8 T 2
consideration shares at an issue price of HKD0.145 FTBERNERETIAREBA K
per consideration share by the Company to the Ease NEIZBEEANTRRIN) BB R BT
Ray Vendor or his nominees (except for connected 6,000,000,0000% X & M 15 2 A =
person of the Company). X ffe

On 29 April 2011, the Group completed the RZTE——FHAZ+NB K&
acquisition of the entire issued share capital in Ease BB R 2E TR
Ray. As part of the consideration for the Ease Ray ReAERE Wi 2 3 H R E K
Acquisition, 3,900,000,000 new ordinary shares of NIRRT ——FHARHZET
the Company with par value of HKDO0.01 each were 3,900,000,000/% & AX EI{EO0.01/8 7T
issued on 5 May 2011 as First Batch Consideration ZARBIFERE EAE IR
Shares. The fair value of the ordinary shares issued Blm BT ERRZATFETD
was determined by referring to the published price 2ERREAR-_T——FIA
available of HKDO0.105 per share at the date of the ZTNABAIESHEAGERTR
acquisition on 29 April 2011. 0.105/8 JTM & JE °
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(B) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30

JUNE 2011 (Continued)
Ease Ray (Continued)

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
dated 3 June 2010 entered with the Ease Ray
Vendor, the First Batch Consideration Shares will be
issued within five business date upon completion
of acquisition of Ease Ray Group and the Second
Batch Consideration Shares will be issued if the
audited profit after tax for the period from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2011 attributable to the Group
shall not be less than RMB51,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD58,140,000) (“Reference Profit”).

If Ease Ray Group fails to meet the profit guarantee
(being the Reference Profit) for the year ended 31
December 2011, the Ease Ray Vendor shall pay the
Company a compensation of 10 times the shortfall
of the profit guarantee by adjusting the Second
Batch Consideration Shares. However, the maximum
downward adjustment is up to the total consideration
of the Second Batch Consideration Shares of
HKD304,500,000 and the Ease Ray Vendor is not
required to return to the Company any of the First
Batch Consideration Shares already issued to him.

Based on the audited consolidated financial
statements of Ease Ray Group for the year ended
31 December 2011, Ease Ray Group has failed to
meet the Reference Profit, therefore the Company has
issued 55,350,793 ordinary shares of the Company
as the Second Batch Consideration Shares to the
Ease Ray Vendor on 10 May 2012.

The First Batch Consideration Share was issued
on 5 May 2011. Upon the completion of Ease Ray
Acquisition, the Company explores the opportunities
and diversifies the Company’s income stream
to include the advertising income from placing
advertisements on traffic lights.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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"= (&)
BEAAGTHRESEAN-_ZE—
EENA=ZBIIZEEHE
F-UREROHER TR KEE
SEBEBAESEARNET WA
—F——F—fF—Hz®Z-Z——
F+-A=+-HHM K&£H
EEZEERGRERZF TN DR
A E#51,000,0007T (HE R4
58,140,000 7C) ([2&&H])
BB T8 — HAEBRD

FESEERBE—_T——F+=
A=+—RIEFEREERRE L
A (BI2E5H) - EETBRH
EF _HREBROOTARARRF]
ST AR B A TR 2 B 1 0
RRE-AM A TRBESB|ORK
1BE SR H —HRERD 2 BRE
304,500,000/ 7 ' ME &7 HA
AR BRE D BT 2 EME—
HERBERD -

BEESEERE —T——F+—
A=+—RLFEZEERRE
BBEHRE BEas@REED2
EHAM A ARRERZZ
——FARAtTHEREREFET
55,350,793 AN A &) L @A E A S
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F—HABENER _F——F1
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(B) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2011 (Continued)

Ease Ray (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion

39. WHEM B A B (&)

B (&)

B) BEZE=—FE——FKA=1
HIEFE @)

ARREERR REBRARNE

that the acquiree’s assets and liabilities approximate ERBEHEEANTFERE RESD
their fair values. The net assets acquired from the kg PTUR Y B E S EANEA
Ease Ray Acquisition and the goodwill arising are as RIEENT
follows:
Pre-
acquisition
carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Fair value
WEEATBREME AT ERAE AFE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHT T
Net assets acquired ik & = FE
Property, plant and L EN S
equipment (Note 20) (MF5E20) 16,349 - 16,349
Goodwill EES 6,087 (6,087) -
Intangible assets (Note 25) & & (Fi7E25) - 185,920 185,920
Trade and other receivables & 5 fE I BR 5% &
H A e YRR IE 45,104 - 45,104
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 319 - 319
Trade and other payables B RNERR
L FE A 5RIE (33,424) - (33,424)
Deferred taxation (Note 38)  #EZEFLIE (Hf:E38) - (46,480) (46,480)
Non-controlling interests FE I e (19,218) - (19,218)
148,570
Goodwill (Note 22) R (M22) 711,430
Adjusted consideration LRERE 860,000

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

e

(B) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30

JUNE 2011 (Continued)

Ease Ray (Continued)

39. WEBHKTEB A B (@)

(B) BE=-ZF——FX<A=*

HIEFE (@)

[——3 e
H 5t (&)

Fair value
NEE
HKD’000
FET
Adjusted consideration satisfied by: &K FERBUATF T A X ¢
Deposit paid for the acquisition WENEMIRS 230,000
Issuance of First Batch BTE—HRERD
Consideration Shares 409,500
Issuance of Second Batch BITE _HRER L
Consideration Shares * 220,500
860,000
Net cash flow arising on acquisition: U B E 4+ MR & M8 F5E
Bank balances and cash acquired FrEmIRTTE SR IR S 319
* Second Batch Consideration Shares will be adjusted * MARREBERBERA  BIFEZ#t

if the Reference Profit could not be achieved. The
fair value of the Second Batch Consideration Shares
at the date of acquisition was performed by Asset

Appraisal.

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. W BB BT B A A (#)

(Continued)

(B) DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30 B) BE=F——FXA=+

JUNE 2011 (Continued)

Ease Ray (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the
main factor leading to excess of considerations over
fair value of net assets acquired is synergy generated
with the patents and contract. The Group is capable
of producing specialised products to accommodate
diversified market orders and to enhance operating
profit.

Including in the consolidated loss for the year is
a profit of approximately HKD5,827,000 profit
contributed by Ease Ray Group. Turnover for the year
includes approximately HKD11,972,000 in respect of
Ease Ray Group.

Had the acquisition of Ease Ray Group been effected
at 1 July 2010, the Group’s revenue for the year
would have been approximately HKD55,793,000
and contributed approximately HKD18,559,000 profit
for the year ended 30 June 2011. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
at 1 July 2010, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the pro forma revenue and loss of
the Group assuming that Ease Ray Group had
been acquired at the beginning of the current year,
the directors of the Company have calculated
amortisation of intangible assets acquired on the
basis of the fair values arising in the initial accounting
for the business combination rather than the carrying
amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition financial
statements.

TR EEEEERAR e ZE—ZFFR

B1EFE (®)

B (&)

ARREERE FBAGESME
REBAATETIELHREBE
FIRAHE LM ERE  AEE
WA ESFERERES T
BT RIRFH L E A -

FREEBEEEE=SE B
2% F#5,827,000/8 7T N 2
HEEEREEME11,972,0008
7T|:o

WESEBRBER-_ZE—ZF+
A—B&Z AIREEFABAL
/55,793,000 L W AEE =T
——F&XNAZtTHILEFEEREF
#918,559,0007%8 TT ° 4 & & FHE
AR W EERMBEE R
ZE—ZEFLtA—HEK A£H
AERES 2 MARKEEEENE
12 SERKRRERE TR -

REEAEEZHEERARER
(BREZEEERAFENKRE
BIR ARREFCREXBS
HERBVT G REMELEZ AT
B AECWBEETEE 2 #IH-
MR BWIE AT KR R Z
REEETHE-
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40.

P

——FNAZ1HIFE

OPERATING LEASES
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in
respect of office premises from continuing and discontinued
operation during the year amounting to approximately
HKD8,580,000 (2011: HKD3,513,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for a term of two years (2011: two years) with a
fixed rentals. None of the leases included contingent rentals
and terms of renewal were established in the leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2«( P fﬂ iﬂf

L =

REBEREEA

FRAFBEMRIEREEFRERAE
MELCLEHEEMNNERELOA
8,580,000/ 7t (=& —— 4% :3,513,000
HEIL) °

REHEFBERAREREETHRAE
MERMNOES - HONBHTHBRRE
T —F MF) HEET - MEX
AEETHEORERFRITINED
o

R|EMR NEBRBENAT B H2
HIM A AR 2 MO AR RERS
TR AR

2012 2011

—E——& —E——%F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FER FHET

Within one year —F KN 6,048 5,831
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF

(BREEEWMF) 5 3,946

6,053 9,777

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #HZ=—F——FNH=+HIFFE

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

42.

B RHEHE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Commitments contracted for but not BN TEER
provided in the consolidated financial Bk 2 B R4
statements in respect of BRBHERAE
- Acquisition of property, plant and — B BB &
equipment B 10,600 -

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

Year ended 30 June 2011

(@)

On 5 May 2011, 3,900,000,000 new shares of
the Company were issued as the First Batch
Consideration Shares for the Ease Ray Acquisition.
The consideration shares were credited as fully paid
upon completion of the Ease Ray Acquisition at the
published price of the shares of the Company at
HKDO0.105 per share as of 29 April 2011.

Year ended 30 June 2012

(@)

On 7 July 2011, 68,750,000 new shares of the
Company were issued as the consideration shares for
the Smart Long Acquisition. The consideration shares
were credited as fully paid upon completion of the
Smart Long Acquisition at the published price of the
shares of the Company at HKDO0.55 per share as of
that date. For details, please refer to Note 39(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 10 May 2012, 55,350,793 new shares of
the Company were issued as Second Batch
Consideration Shares for the Ease Ray Acquisition.
The consideration shares were credited as fully paid
upon the finalisation of the audited resulted of Ease
Ray Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
at the published price of the shares of the Company
at HKDO0.67 per share as of 10 May 2012. For
details, please refer to Note 39(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

42. FBIEBR SR H

BE-T —FRASTALFE

@ R-B——FRAHB AT
773,900,000,0000% %1 i /£ & H =
W2 E—RERD - RERH
RE S WEE TR RE AR R DR
—E——HA-+NBZAFE
& FR%0.1058 T ABRFIESLE »

BE-T - —FRASTALFE

@ RIE——FLAtH AQFEH
7768,750,0000% 37 A% V£ & S B U R
ZREBRD - RERRMD L B UEE
ERERARRBROMREDZA
F 18 1% &= 1R0.557 7T A BR 5l 1E 54
B-HBR2HGRATBRERM T
39(a) °

by M-ZE——FHA+H KAFEH
7755,350,7930% 37 A% 1E & B o I g
ZEHRERSD -ZERER®D
REEEREEEE_T——F
T A=+ —HIEFEZEERE
BREARNRBRMN _-_T——FH
B+BzAMRERER0.67ETA
RIVMEB R -H BB L2HERATB
|/E M EE39(0) °
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43. SUBSIDIARIES 43. M8 A A
The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 30 June TREIVR-_ZE—_FA=+HEHHMH
2012: Bra]:
Nominal value of Attributable equity
Class of Place of incorporation paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held and kind of legal entity share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMALBLER BHEN
WEAR AR it vkl EEERER BRTRAEE KARELER FTEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE GE:S
Best Faith (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD3,000 - 100%  Production and sales of
(Trading as B&S Films company videos and fims, and

Creation Works House)

B (FR)ERAR (ARA  HRR &% BRAA 3,000 - 100%
EYAIEEREEE)
B&S Group Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands (‘BVI'), HKD234,000 100% -
limited fiability company
B&S Group Limited Lak KBRAHE BRAA 234,000% 7T 100% -
B&S Films Distribution Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD10,000 - 100%
Company Limited company
PREFETERLHA EER ik BRAA 10,0007 - 100%
B&S Fims Production Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD10,000 - 100%
company
PREFEIEERAHA Lk EE BRRA 10,000% 7 - 100%
BIG Pictures Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD1 - 100%
company
ATHEERLA Eak 5 BRRA 1% - 100%
BIG Artiste Management Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD1 - 100%
Limited company
ATHERRAR il BB BRAA 1% - 100%
China Wimetro Ordinary BVI, limited liability company USD1 - 100%
Communications Company
Limited
PEESATREERAR  LAR ABRLES ARAR iEH - 100%

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012

licensing of videos and
copyrights/film rights in
Hong Kong

REARFNHESRETAY
FREGEEBERE/
YRt

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive

TEEH

Inactive

TEEH

Film production in Hong Kong

REBREY

Artiste management
in Hong Kong

REERELEAER

Investment holding
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43. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

A3. B A F] ()

Nominal value of Attributable equity
Class of Place of incorporation paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held and kind of legal entity share capital to the Company Principal activities
ERELEER BAEN
WEAEERE gl skl EEERER BRTRARE RNRELER TERY
Directly Indirectly
HE GE:3
China Wimetro Company Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
PEESHTARLA LaR ik ERAA 10,0007 - 100%  RERHR
Fleur Group Limited Ordinary BVI, limited liablity company USD15,000 - 100%  Holding of copyrights in
Hong Kong
Fleur Group Limited Bl ABREES BRAA 15,000% 7T - 100%  REEREMmE
Getbetter Enterprises Limited ~ Ordinary BVI, limited liability company USD1 100% - Investment holding
Getbetter Enterprises Limited 1B ZEEAHE BRAT eI 100% - RERR
Joyful New Limited Ordinary BVI, limited liability company USD1 100% - Investment holding
Joyful New Limited LAk KBRZHE BRAA 1% 100% - RERR
Shenzhen Huanlian Contributed capital ~ PRC, limited liability company HKD1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of consultancy and
Communications managerial services
Technology Company
Limited
RTURBERNARRE HE PE BRERLF 1,000,000 70 - 100%  REEFHREERS
Shenzhen Kunyu Contributed capital ~ PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sales and distribution of
Communications Technology telecommunication
Company Limited products
RTETRERNERAT  HE PE BREALF AR 10,000,000 - 100% HERIHERER
Total Big Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD1 - 100%  Fim production in Hong Kong
company
ENERAT EFil Fh ARAR BT - 100%  REBRMETH
Ease Ray Ordinary BV, limited liability company US$100 100% - Investment holding
R il RBRLES ARAA 1007 100% - REER
Pacific Mind Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD1 - 100%  Investment holding
company
TRARAH LaR ik ERAA 1% - 100%  RERHR
Elegant Capital Limited Ordinary PRC, limited liability company RMB500,000 - 70%  Investment consultancy
LTETERELHARAR  EAR PE BREMLR AR 5000007 - 0%  RA#A

TEHEEEEERAR e ZE—Z_FFR
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43. SUBSIDIARIES (Gontinued) 43. M A E] (#)
Nominal value of Attributable equity
Class of Place of incorporation paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held and kind of legal entity share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRELEER BAEN
WEAEERE gl skl EEERER BRTRARE RNRELER TERY
Directly Indirectly
HE GE:3
City Media Co., Ltd. Ordinary PRC, limited liability company RMB500,000 - 70%  Investment holding
LEREXERMRARLE  HAER ME BREAAF AR 500,007 - 0%  RERR
Shanghai Dasan Hexian City Ordinary PRC, limited liability company RMB11,000,000 - 51.1%  Design and production of
Environmental Art Company traffic signboards and
Limited computer graphics,
advertisements and signal
systems equipment
LER=NEETRELNE HER ME BEREAAF AR11,000,0007 - 51.1%  RBERE BHEXEER
RAR ERRZRRBORAR
Bk
Smart Long Ordinary BVI, limited liabllity company UsD1 100% - Investment holding
Ll Bl ABREES BRAA E 100% - REER
Cheermay Limited Ordinary Hong Kong, limited liability HKD1 - 100%  Investment holding
company
REARLA EER EE BRAA AT - 100%  RERHR
Guangdong Wisys Ordinary PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sales of telecommunication
Communications Co. Ltd. products and provision of
agency services for sale of
telecommunication products
BERBBERIRAR il PE BREAAF AR10,000,0007 - 100% HEEAEREAHEERE
miRERERE
44, DEED OF CHARGE 44, R

Pursuant to a production finance agreement signed
between Total Big Limited (“TBL”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”)
on 18 February 2009 in respect of the production of a film
tited “Give Love”, the title of the firm and the whole of
TBL’s undertaking and assets were charged in favour of the
HKSAR as security for the discharge of the obligations of
TBL under the agreement.

REARAZE2ZEMNBAREIAERA
Bl (DEEL]) BFBRRTRE ([F85F
BODBRR-_FZNLF_A+ /AR
e h [EGRIBIZ8ERERHH
FhzmBERENZZBEHREE
EERTEERE FREINEITZ R
HATEB 2R
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

45. W5 AR L &%

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&:7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZRE 503,283 860,100
Property, plant and equipment W BE k& 573 719
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary 5t U & — I B A 5 2
[EENEiZEn - 120,000
503,856 980,819
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE e hEAM
other receivables FE W FRIA 77,096 35,402
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UL BT B A B FRI8 22,351 18,699
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 638 1,145
100,085 55,246
Asset classified as held for sales NEAERBELECZEE 100 -
100,185 55,246
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H b fE 5B R ERT A 1,030 4,955
Convertible notes payable FET AT IR IR = 4R - 24,801
Contingent consideration payable ETsARE - 220,500
1,030 250,256
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) #EBEE (&%) FE 99,155 (195,010)
NET ASSETS EEFE 603,011 785,809
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRFE
Share capital &N 232,692 193,282
Reserves ] 370,319 592,527
TOTAL EQUITY R 603,011 785,809

REIFEES

BEERA T e _E—_H5R
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46.

47.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BE AN TR 5
The key management personnel of the Group comprises all REBETEEBABBERARIMBE
directors of the Company, details of their emoluments are - HFMFEBEERNF17 - ARFE
disclosed in Note 17. The remuneration of the directors of ErFWBFHNEEeREREARER
the Company is determined by the remuneration committee TSRS MEE
having regards to the performance of individuals and
market.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 47. kBT
In order to conform with the current year presentation, BREEAFEEZEIAR BHEZZT——
certain items in the consolidated statement of FRA=THIEFEZHEEZANRESR
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2011 JATEEEREM»E-EHEEVNHE
have been reclassified. Reclassification adjustment is made SR TH B S R & B AN 49329,00078 T E H#T
to reclassify finance costs amounting to approximately DEZENAUBRRBRERZ AT EEZE):
HKD329,000 to changes in fair value on convertible notes MBBEN P EHAEEHEZ T —
payable and such reclassification has no impact on the FRA-THIEFEZBETESZ-
Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2011.
Details of the restatement are provided as follows: BHFBWOT
Amount Restatement/ Amount as
original stated  Reclassification restated
EXRIEE BH/EFNIE B8
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET T
ltems on consolidated statement of BE-Z2-—-5XA=+H
comprehensive income for the LEECREZENGER
year ended 30 June 2011 HE
Changes In fair value on convertible notes ~ JERN AI A REE 7 A FE
payable L) - 329 329
Finance costs BMEKK 551 (329) 222

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012



Financial Summary

MBHE

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results A NAXRNEEDHIE 2 EE BENAE
and of the assets and liabilities of the Group: i
Results E 4

Year ended 30 June
BERAZTHLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
TE--fF T4 _Z-TH _ZTTNEF _TITN\F
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
THER FTET FET FET FET

(Restated)  (Restated)

(&&5])  (KED)

Turnover E 100,180 27,163 44,626 48,394 24,356
Cost of sales SR A (9,396) (5359)  (43013) (48,869  (25218)
Gross profit (loss) EM(ER) 90,784 21,804 1,613 (475) (862)
Other income and gains E b Y A Rz 3,180 12,025 2,315 560 955
Share-based payments expenses AR A ERE 2 (N E FH - (38,331) - - -
Selling and marketing costs iHE RSB A (1,741) (2,846) (6,970) (8,066) (5,655)
Administrative and other expenses 17 B & £ 4th 2 F (112,489) (19,355) (35,509) (25,836) (19,852)
Impairment loss recognised REERRZRNEREE

in respect of goodwill (541,458) - (5,895) - -
Gain on contingent consideration 8¢ A AB 2 U2k 33,972 - - - -
Gain on settlement of contingent 4= & FEF s ARE Z

consideration payable g 183,415 - - - -
Impairment loss on intangible asset 4 72 & 72 & (& &5 18 (109,316) - - - -
Loss on early redemption of 12 5 HE Bl FE {+F AT R A%

convertible notes payable ZEZEE (1,596) - - - -
Changes in fair value on convertible f& {5 A] 2 A% 22 & 2

notes payable NEEEZH 702 (329) - - -
Loss from operating activities REEBEE (454,547) (27,032) (44,446) (33,817) (25,414)
Finance costs B A A (1,305) (222) 8) (18) (121)
Loss before taxation BRELAIE 1B (455,852) (27,254) (44,454) (33,835) (25,535)
Income tax credit (expense) PEHiER (M) 35,630 (3,809) (10) - -
Net loss for the year FNEBHEFE (420,222) (31,063) (44,464) (33,835) (25,535)
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BAT =

Assets and liabilities EERBE
As at 30 June
RRA=1+H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——f —T——F T-ZTF —TTNF ZTT)\F
HKD’000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
FHx FHET FHEL FET FHT
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(&) (KE=H) (KEH)
Non-current assets FERBEE 440,054 1,120,388 302,654 28,849 47,366
Current assets RBEE 254,265 171,196 238,245 33,998 34,790
Current liabilities mBEE (73,494)  (360,552) (89,686) (25,766) (11,261)
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE(AE)FE 180,771 (189,356) 148,559 8,232 23,529
Non-current liability JEmEBBE (9,772) (45,705) - 1) -
Net assets AEFE 611,053 885,327 451,213 37,060 70,895

Neo Telemedia Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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